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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

J29 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.Rh.gov

November 18, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexuai Violence (VC#155510), Concord, NH to add funding and modify
scope for the continued provision of a housing services continuum of care project, by increasing
the price limitation by $86,292 from $1,050,912 to $1,137,204 with no change to the contract
completion date of June 30, 2027, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal
Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 14,2023, item #38.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Numt>er

Current

Budget

increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised
Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asstand Relief
Multiple $262,728 $0 $262,728

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $262,728 $28,764 $291,492

2026 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $262,728 $28,764 $291,492

2027 074-500589
Grants for Pub

Asst and Relief
42307050 $262,728 $28,764 $291,492

Subtotal $1,050,912 $86,292 $1,137,204



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Federal regulations require all
procurement efforts for these services to be directed by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) through an annual Continuum of Care (CoC) competitive application
process. The Department must contract with the vendor selected as a result of this HUD process.

The purpose of this request is to allow the Department to add funding and modify scope
to support the Contractor's continued delivery of the Rapid Rehousing Domestic Violence project,
and to add required contract terms. HUD awarded additional funds because Fair Mar1<et Rent
(FMR) rates increased in October 2024. Fair Market Rates are updated annually to assist
individuals served by rental assistance projects to keep up with increasing rental costs. When
FMR increases, HUD rental assistance grant funds are increased in order to continue to support
existing projects, and to prevent the households being served from returning to homelessness.

Approximately 16 families, or up-to 29 individuals, will be served at any given time
annually.

The Contractor, utilizing the federally required Housing First model, will continue to deliver
Rapid Re-Housing Domestic Violence services that offer rental assistance to individuals, youth
and, or families who are experiencing homelessness. The Contractor will continue to provide
personalized supportive services and collaborative case management to support the ability of
participants, who must be fleeing, or attempting to flee domestic violence while experiencing
homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness, to transition to sustained permanent
housing. Overall, the Contractor works to maximize each participant's ability to live more
independently by providing connections to community services.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports provided by
the Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance with administrative rules and
contractual agreements.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, which may lead to vulnerable individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in unsafe situations without needed support. Additionally, the
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive service programs.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH0113D1T002305.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Baspectfujly.subrnitted,

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

Tht Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 . .

This Amendment to the Continuum of Care NHCADSV contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 14, 2023 (Item #38), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, ,.pursu^t.^^prm. P-37, General Provisions, the Contracfrriay be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,137,204

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B, Scope of Services,
Amendment#!, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1.1, to read:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing
Assistance (Public Law 102-550), by the US Dept of Housing and Urban
Development, Continuum of Care Program, Assistance Listing Number #14.267, as
awarded on:

■  1.1.1. March 28, 2023, FAIN#NH0113D1T002204; and

1.1.2. May20, 2024, FAIN #NH0113D1T002305.

4. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit 0-3, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-3, Budget, Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by .reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-4, Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-4, Budget, Amendment #1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

New Hampshire Coalition Against

Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials

(AS

SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date

v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/8/2024

Date

-DocuSigncd by:

(K S-
FOX

Title: Di rector

11/8/2024

Date

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic
and Sexual Violence

k^rfi

DocuSlgntd by:

lA, fil. SdiMuK
-SL^W^schonett

Title: Executive Director

New Hampshire Coalition Against

Domestic and Sexual Violence

SS-2b24-DBH-10-CONTI-01-A01

V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

.  OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/-^OocuSlgntd by:

11/8/2024
•  ̂ ii iMeywxwHee..^ .
Date NameToD^yn cuanno .

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;

New Hampshire,Coalition Against

Domestic and Sexual Violence A-S-1.3

SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-01-A01 Page 3 of 3

V. 7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 40C618DE-D21D-43BE-A2AA-78B5407231D1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Rapid Re-Housing fRRH)

1.1.1.1. The Contractor must provide a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) program,
in this Agreement, as defined by HUD, that delivers supportive
services, including case management, and either short-term (1 to
3 months), or medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance,
based on participants rieeds.

1.1.1.2. The Contractor must provide supportive services for no longer than
six (6) months after rental assistance ends.

1.1.1.3. The Contractor must re-evaluate, at leasF annually, whether the
program participants lack sufficient resources and support
networks necessary to retain housing without CoC assistance and
the types and amounts of assistance that the program participants
need to retain housing.

1.1.1.4. The Contractor must ensure that program participants meet with
their case manager at least once per month to assist the program
participant with obtaining and maintaining long-term housing
stability. The project is exempt from this requirement if the Violence
Against Women Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925 et seq.) or the Family
Violence Prevention and Services Act (42 U.S.C. 10401 et seq.)
prohibits the recipient carrying out the project from making its
housing conditional on the participant's acceptance of services.
The Contractor must integrate program participants into the
community and promote housing stability.

1.1.1.5. The Contractor must assist program participants with developing
or increasing their skills and obtaining income, and/or employment.

1.1.1.6. The Contractor must provide or.connect program participants with
supportive.services.

1.1.1.7. The Contractor must support and document appropriate efforts to
enhance the participant's ability to reach self-sufficiency.

1.1.2. Rapid Re-Housing Domestic Violence fRRH DV) Project

1.1.2.1. The Contractor must provide a RRH program as described in
Section 1.1.1.

1.1.2.2. " The Contractor must provide a Rapid Re-Housing Permanent
Housing, Domestic Violence (RRH DV) program, in this
Agreement, that is targeted to serve 16 families, or, up-to 29
individuals, at any given time annually. Participants mus^^be

(AS
SS-2024-DBH-10.CONTI.01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials ^

New Hampshire Cpaliticxi Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Page 1 of 17 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence while experiencing
homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness, as
defined by HUD.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must provide either short-term (1 to 3 months), or
. medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance, based on
participants needs.

1.1.2.4. The Contractor must provide immediate assistance with identifying
safe and confidential housing options with the support of
Contractor's staff.

1.1.2.5. The Contractor must provide immediate referrals to assist with
safety and security concerns.

1.1.2.6. The Contractor must provide participants with access to training
and support groups that focus on trauma, recovery from trauma,
and other supports.

1.1.2.7. The Contractor must assist participants in finding long-term safe
and permanent housing.

1.1.2.8. The Contractor must provide supportive services, including at least
monthly case management, and connect participants with
supportive services to help participants obtain and remain in
permanent housing.

1.1.2'.9. The Contractor must provide Violence Against Women (VAWA)
eligible services, including using project funds to provide for
emergency transfer facilitation, ■ which includes the costs of
assessing, coordinating, approving, and denying and implementing
a survivor's emergency transfer and to provide for VAWA
confidentiality requirements, which includes the costs of ensuring
compliance with the VAWA confidentiality. requirements, per
Section III.B.4.a.(3)(a) of the FY2023 NOFO.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the

approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must ensure that participants meet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1.2.3. The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.2.5. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Department.

-08

(AS
SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTW1-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.6. The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required by the
Department.

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to:

1.2.7.1. . Utilization.of the Housing First model that ensures:

1.2.7.1.f. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
those required by federal regulations or state laws;
and

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as. detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that ,is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining necessary skills and resources to
live in the community independently.

1.2.8. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.8.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed
resource provision; ,

1.2.8.2. ■ Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increase
safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants are offered connections to assistance in applying for
Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households with children will be connected to education resources,

school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

1.2.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the

program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance

misuse, mental health, medical needs, peer support, or any other need for
referral assistance identified by the participant.

1.2.11. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent housing, as well as participants' connections with

,  IAS
SS-2O24-D0H-1(K;onti.O1-AO1 B-2.0 Contractor Initials

11/8/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

community and mainstream services, to increase independence and
household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.12. The Contractor must actively participate in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are not limited to, participant files and financial data to ensure
compliance with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

1.2.12.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department
and/or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department and/ or HUD.

-  1.2.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b). HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector General, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed
in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.15. The Contractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies
who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

.  1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
■  outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families meet
the requirement definition of homelessness, or at imminent risk of
homelessness qualifications, as defined in HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by S. 896,
The Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to

—08

,  IAS
SS-2024-DBH-10-CONT1-01-A01 B-2.0 . Contractor Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Housing (HEARTH) Act of ' 2009.
https://www.hud.qov^ites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF:

1.2.18.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.

1.2.18.2. The Cohtractor must ensure all programs are licensed to provide
client level data into the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,
per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following HUD publication:
https://files.hudexchanQe.info/resources/documents/FY-2024-

HMIS-Comparable-Database-Manual.pdf.

1.2.18.3. The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
tirne required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and.maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD

and the Department to determine Contractor compliance, including but not
limited to:

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the

following documentation related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

■  maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at

risk of homelessness" status of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of

Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor
must retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

(AS
SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.20.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault, or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented in
the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the
housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim

service provider,^ social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral

counselor, mental health provider, or
mother professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law
enforcement records; or written
certification by the program participant
to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.2.20.T.3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent

threat of further domestic violence,

dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would iriclude threats
from a third-party, such as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service

provider, social worker, legal
assistance. provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought, assistance; current
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication
records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends
of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, • text
messages, and social media posts; or
a written certification by the program
participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household.

IAS
SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Cofitrador Initials

11/8/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment #1

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is
paid by the program participant, the Contractor must keep the
following documentation of annual income:

1.2.20.2.1. Iricome evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited
to:

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement;

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank
statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the

evaluation.

1.2.20.2.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent
period; or

1.2.20.2.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party
verification are unobtainable, the written certification
by the program participant of the amount of income
that the program participant is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period following
the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as
applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1. The services and assistance provided to that
program participant, including evidence that the
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service. package accordingly, and including case

SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTW1-A01 B-2.0

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence Page 7 of 17

Contractor Initials

Date
11/8/2024



Docusign Envelope ID; 40C618DE-D21D-43BE-A2AA-7d65407231D1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

1.2.20.3.2. VVhere applicable, compliance with the termination of
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

1.2.20.4. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of

compliance with the housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b),
including inspection reports.

.  - 1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor rnust keep
documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contractor must maintain records that document compliance with:

1.2.21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR

578.95(c);

1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR

578.95(b); and

1.2.21.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.22. The Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the persorial
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.2.23.1. The homeless participation requirements in accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g);

1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
578.87(b);

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578;93(c) for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal.requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and

1.2.23.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

1.2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

^  DS

IMS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.24.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are
kept secure and confidential;

1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not.made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

1.3. Contract Administration

1.3.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or
.  trainings requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS),

including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and
federal laws. To the extent possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five (5) working days in advance of each
meeting.

1.3.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within
thirty (30) days of the change.

1.4. Reporting Requirements

1.4.1. The Contractor must submit an Annual Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date oh the
form required, or specified, by the Department.

1.4.2. The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to:

NHDHHS

Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.4.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results
of the project activities, consistent with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year COC Notice of
Funding Opportunity (NOFO).

1.4.4. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department in
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

1.4.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department,
in a format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and
metrics, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

1.5. Background Checks

SS-2024-OBM-1O-CONTI-01-A0i B-2.0
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.5.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this Agreement, the
Contractor must ensure that said individual has undergone:

1.5.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and has
no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of behavior that
could endanger individuals served under this Agreement;

1.5.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult
Services (SEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and

1.5.1.3. A name search of the Department's Division for Children, Youth
and Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to RSA 169-C:35,
with results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement.

1.6. Confidential Data

1.6.1. The Contractor must meet all information security and privacy requirements
as set by the Department and in accordance with the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit as referenced below.

1.6.2. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering services
through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing to access, view,
store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws
and regulatiqns and the Department's Information Security Requirements
Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justifiable
business need to access confidential data. The Contractor must provide
attestations upon Department request.

1.7. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.7.1. Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department in
conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) of its
system(s)/application(s)/web portal(s)/website(s) or Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal{s)/website(s). hosted by the Contractor, if
Personally Identifiable Information (Pll) is collected, used, accessed, shared,
or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor must provide the Department
access to applicable systems and documentation sufficient to allow the
Department to assess, at minimum, the following:

.7.1.1. How Pll is gathered and stored;

.7.1.2. Who will have access to Pll;

.7.1.3. How Pll will be used in the system;

.7.1.4. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked; and

.7.1.5. Privacy practices.

—OS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.7.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PIAs in the event there are either
significant process changes or new technologies impacting the collection,
processing or storage of Pll.

1.8. Department Owned Devices, Systems and Network Usage

1.8.1. Contractor End Users, defined in the Department's Information Security
Requirements Exhibit that is incorporated into this Agreement, authorized by
the Department's Information Security Office to use a Department Issued
device (e.g. computer, tablet, mobile telephone) or access the Department
network in the fulfilment of this Agreement, must:

1.8.1.1. Sign and abide by applicable Department and New Hampshire
Department of Information Technology (NH DolT) use agreements,
policies, standards, procedures and guidelines, and complete
applicable trainings as required;

1.8.1.2. Use the information that they have permission to access solely for
conducting official Department business and agree that all other
use or access is strictly forbidden including, but not limited, to
personal or other private and non-Department use, and that at no
time shall they access or attempt to access information without
having the express authority of the Department to do so;

1.8.1.3. Not access or attempt to access information in a manner
inconsistent with the approved policies, procedures, and/or
agreement relating to system entry/access;

1.8.1.4. Not copy, share, distribute, sub-license, modify, reverse engineer,
rent, or sell software licensed, developed, or being evaluated by
the Department, and at all times must use utmost care to protect
and keep such software strictly confidential in accordance with the
license or any other agreement executed by the Department;

1.8.1.5. Only use equipment, software, or subscription(s) authorized by the
Department's Information Security Office or designee;

1.8.1.6. Not install non-standard software on any Department equipment
unless authorized by the Department's Information Security Office
or designee;

T.8.1.7. Agree that email and other electronic communication messages
created, sent, and received on a Department-issued email system
are the property of the Department of New Hampshire and to be
used for business purposes only. Email is defined as "internal
email systems" or "Department-funded email systems."

1.8.1.8. Agree that use of email must follow Department and NH DolT
policies, standards, and/or guidelines; and

1.8.1.9. Agree when utilizing the Department's email system:
-DS

(AS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.8.1.9.1. To only use a Department email address assigned to
them with a affiliate.DHHS.NH.Gov".

1.8.1.9.2. Include in the signature lines information identifying
the End User as a non-Department workforce
member: and

1.8.1.9.3. Ensure the following confidentiality notice is
embedded underneath the signature line:

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: "This message may contain
information that is privileged and confidential and is
intended only for the use of the individual(s) to Nvhom it is
addressed. If you receive this message in error, please
notify the sender immediately and delete this electronic
message and any attachments from your system. Thank
you for your cooperation."

1.8.1.10. Contractor End Users with a Department issued email, access or
potential access to Confidential Data, and/or a workspace in a
Department building/facility, must:

1.8.1.10.1. Complete the Department's Annual Information
Security & Compliance Awareness Training prior to
accessing, viewing, handling, hearing, or transmitting
Department Data or Confidential Data.

1.8.1.10.2. Sign the Department's Business Use and
Confidentiality Agreement and Asset Use
Agreement, and the NH DolT Department wide
Computer Use Agreement upon execution of the
Agreement and annually thereafter.

1.8.1.10.3. Only access the Department's intranet to view the
Department's Policies and Procedures and
Information Security webpages.

1.8.1.11. Contractor agrees, if any End User is found to be in violation of any
of the above terms and conditions, said End User may face
removal from the Agreement, and/or ■ criminal and/or civil
prosecution, if the act constitutes a violation of law.

1.8.1.12. Contractor agrees to notify the Department a minimum of three
business days prior to any upcoming transfers or terminations of
End Users v\^o possess Department credentials and/or badges or
who have system privileges. If End Users who possess Department
credentials and/or badges or who have system privileges resign or
are dismissed without advance notice, the Contractor agrees to
notify the Department's Information Security Office or designee
immediately.

SS.2024.0BH.10.CONTI-01-A01 B-2.0 Contrador Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.8.2. Workspace Requirement

1.8.2.1. If applicable, the Department will work with Contractor to determine
requirements for providing necessary workspace and State
equipment for its End Users.

1.9. Contract End-of-Llfe Transition Services

1.9.1. General Requirements

1.9.1.1. If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the Agreement the
parties agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a smooth
secure transition of the Services frohi the Contractor to the

Department-and, if applicable, the Contractor engaged by the
Department to assume the Services previously performed by the
Contractor for this section the new Contractor shall be known as

"Recipient"). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the contract or
unless otherwise specified by the Department, the Contractor must
begin working with the Department and if applicable, the new
Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan (DTP). The
Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

1.9.1.2. The Contractor must use-reasonable efforts to assist the Recipient,
in connection with the transition from the performance of Services
by the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of such
Services. This may include assistance with the secure transfer of
records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from
the hardware, software, network and telecommunications
equipment and internet-related information technology
infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the Internal
IT Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance
to any third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection
with the Transition Services.

1.9.1.3. If a systerfi, database, hardware, software, and/or software
licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to manage, track,
and/or store Department Data in relationship to this contract said
Tools will be inventoried and returned to the Department, along
with the inventory document, once transition of Department Data is
complete.

1.9.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor
and its End Users shall be provided to the Department and if
applicable the Recipient in a timely manner. Any such Transition
Services shall be deemed to be Services for purposes of this
Agreement.

1.9.1.5. Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information/Seourlty

(AS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Requirements, and if applicable, the Department's Business
Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain in effect until
the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

1.9.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comlngled Department Data
and the destruction or Transition of said data is hot feasible, the
Department and Contractor will jointly evaluate regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements prior to
destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's
DHHS Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

■ 1.9.2. Completion of Transition Services

1.9.2.1. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed completed (and
the Transition process finalized) at the end of 15 business days
after the product, resultirig from the Service, is delivered to the
Department and/or the Recipient in accordance with the mutually
agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day
term the Contractor notifies the Departrnent of an issue requiring
additional time to complete said product.

1.9.2.2.' Once all parties agree.the data has been migrated the Contractor
will have 30 days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions
of the Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.3. Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the
Transition Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in
writing, stating the reason for the lack of satisfaction within 15
business days of the final product or at any time during the data
Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to be
taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate
actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy
Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I,
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms
f  DS

I  (AS
SS-2024-D8H-10-CONTI-01.A01 B-2.0 C<*itractor Initials

New Hampshire Coalition Againsl Domestic and SexusI Violence Page 14 of 17 Date



Docusign Envelope ID: 40C618DE-D21D-438E-A2AA-78B5407231D1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuurn of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

3.1. Impacts Resuttihg from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS)

3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or services to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part t^y the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures;

3.3.3.2. Resource directories;

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines;

3.3.3.4. Posters; and

3.3.3.5. Reports

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In.the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer o/^rcers

m
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pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit must be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders,
guidelines, policies and procedures.

3.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
the Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department.

3.5.3. . In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, which file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department
requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

-  3.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant must be inforrned
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

4. Records

4.1. the Contractor must keep records that include, but are not liniited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
. and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to

SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-01.A01 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
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without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for.
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application and
eligibility (including, all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

4.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state
or federal law or regulation.

4.3. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their" designated representatives must have access to all reports and records
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts
and transcripts.

4.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claiiried by the Coritractor as costs hereunder, the Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or
to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Uilbtt C-2. 6u4|tt, Amendment 11

NHCADSV • RRH DV

|CoC Fundt • NH01U01T002305

. -
SFY202S • 7/1/24-6/30/25

TOTAL PROGRAU COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BH3 SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD M03TTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

R ettal Asaialance t  238.eM 3 3 3 3 3 3  228.844 3 3

SwDonhd Scrdeet I  M.aOO 3 3 3 3 3 3  28.400 3 3

VAWA 3  S.l&S 3  3.I3S

Admiriisntion 3  tl.2«3 3 3 3 3 3' 3  11.282 3 3

23% RequitM Metch 3 - Ts.eea 3 3 3  78.808 3 5 3

TOTAL HUO FUNDSJBALANCE 3  MT.ttt 3 3 3  . 78.888 3 3 3  291.492 3 3

lUIAL • y/l/24-b/SU/Zb 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST COtfTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Acttvlty Name BUDGET VTD 'MONTHLY BUDGET YTD . MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

ReitalAlaittenea 3  238.044 3 3 3 3 3 3  228.844 3 3

S««poR>ve Sendee* 3  38.400 3 3 3 3 3 3  28.400 3 3

VAWA 3  3.19S 3  3.138

Admimtnlion 3  11.203 3 3 3 3 3 3  11.302 3 3

23% Reotared Mateii 3  Ts.ese 3 3 3  7s.eoe 3 3 3

TOTAL HUO FUNOSQALANCE 3  387.188 3' 3  - . • 3  TB.eM 3 3 3  291.483 3 S

TeiaiWfOMatcn 3  2»TA92

Centncter Intttels

SS-2024^H-lOC0NTI4>-A01

New Hampihlre CMNlton A^atntt Domettic and Seixial Violence
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tiehibh C-3. Budfct, Amendment il

KHCADSV • RRH DV

|CoC Funds • NH0113D1TOQ23OS

SFY2026 • 7/1/2S-6/J0/26
CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

AcUvitv Nsmo BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
RantalAssbtance S  23S.<M t 5 3 5 3 1  238.044 3 3

StMOrtlve Services 5  U.400 t 5 5 3 3 3  38.400 3 5
VAVW t  J.t&S 3  3.159
AAnMstrRion 5  11.293 i 5 5 3 3 3  11.293 3 5
25% Reqiirad Matcn t  Ts.ew 5 ( 5  75808 3

t  m.in t I t  7A8M 3 3 3  291.402 3 3

luiML ■ r/i/^>-b/au/<o 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE
Activity Nani* BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Renal Assistanae I  238,944 5 1 5 3 3 3  238.844 3 3

Stvpoctrve Servtcss i  38.400 5 5 1 3 3 3  38,400 3 3

VAWA S  3.159 3  3.159
AdmWstration 5  11.203 5 5 5 3 3 3  11.203 3 $
25% Reouired Match 1  75.810 1 S 5  79.808 3 3

t  387.188 t 5 t . 71.898 3 3 3  291.482 3 3

ToMIWTOntcA
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New Hjfflpthire CMlitlen Against Domestic and Scwal Violence
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Exhkbtt C-4, tu4c*(, Amendment f1

NHCADSV - RRH OV

|CoC Fundt • NH011301T0023aS

SFY2027 - 7/1/26-6/30/27
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity N«fn« BUDGET rTD MOKTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Rental Asilstence t  »9.e«4 I S 8 8 8 8  238.844 8 8

St()cor9ve Servlcee i  38.400 8 8 8 8 8 8  38,400 8 8

VAWA t  3.1SS 8  3.155
AdmMttredon >  1t.2S3 t 8 8 8 8 8  n.3«3 8 8

JS% Reqtaed Match t  75.008 S 8 8  78808 8 8 8

TOTAL HUD FUNOSIBALANCE t  M7.tM 1 8 1  7A888 $ 8 8  29t.4«2 8 8

■"""1
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE '

Activity Nsnt* BUDGET YTD MOKTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
Rettal AaaiaUnco 5  238.844 S 8 8 8 8 8  238.644 8 8
SivpetlM Senrica* S  38.400 » 8 8 $ 8 8  38.400 8 8
VAWA 3  3.1S0 8  3,155
Admaystratien i  1t.303 t S 8 8 8 8  11.203 8 $
2S% Rooiired Match *  78.888 % 8 8  75.808 8 8 8
TOTAL HUD FUNOS/aALANCE >  M7.18S t 8 8  7B.m 8 8 8  281,402 8 8

To(*iWA>M*tBh mA92

Contnctoc Mtlels.
ftAS
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New Hampthlrc Coellilon Againtt Domestic and Sewal Violence



Docusign Envelope 10: 40C618DE-D21D-t3BE-A2AA-78B5407231D1

State, of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify lhat NEW HAMPSHIRE COALITION

AGAINST DOMESTIC AND SEXUAI^ VIOLENCE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Coiporation registered to transact business

in New Hampshire on April 30, 1981. 1 further certify tliat all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63838

Certificate Number: 0006198590

0&
%

Sft.

O

4*

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNcw Hampshire,

this 6th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. Hilaiv Holmes Rheaume ^ hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. i am a duly elected Chairperson/Officer of the NH Coalition Aoainst Domestic and Sexual Violence.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Mav 21. 2024 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Lvn M. Schoilett. Executive Director
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of the NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence to enter into contracts or
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications
thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltion(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: November 19, 2024
Signature^of^lected Officer
Name: Hilary Holmes Rheaume
Title: Chairperson. Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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AC^RO' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

05/06/2024 '

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementts).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

contact Eleanor Spinazzola

(603)293-2791 (603)293-7186

Idmess- Et6anorspinazzola@esinsurance.net
INSURER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A- .Great Americanlnsurance Group GAIG

INSURED.

NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, DBA: NHCADSV

PC Box 353

Cor)cord NH 03302

INSURER B - l-'t'^rty Mutual Agency Corporation

INSURER c:

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; 24 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WLIdV 6PP
(MWDorrfYf) IMM/OOiYYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE INSO

I5DBIT

MC POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
inSIT
LTR .

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LUBtLITY

1 CLAIMS-MAOE I X| OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TdHENTEO
PREMISES {E« occunencel

MAC 5464236 23 05/15/2024 05/15/2025

MEO EXP (Any one (WOn)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

OENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER;

PRO
JECTPOLICY

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

1.000.000

100,000

5.000

1,000.000

2,000.000

2,000,000

AUTOMOeiLE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddenll

100,000

BODILY INJURY (Par perton)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

8CHE0ULE0
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

MAC 5464236 23 05/15/2024 05/15/2025 BOOILY INJURY (Par acdoani)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPcf acridenll

X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS UAB X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000,000

UMB8234007-16 05/15/2024 05/15/2025 1,000,000

PEP IS. RETENTION S
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABILrTY

ANY PROPRIETORA»ARTNER«XECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
u m. daaoiba laider
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS twkM

m

X
PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER—

WC5-31S-604577-024 05/15/2024 05/15/2025
E.L. EACHACaOENT

500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
500,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Ramarka Sehadula, may ba attachad If more spact la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services .

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE OELIVEREO IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord

t

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

<D 1986-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NHCADSVVision and Mission

Vision

Alt New Hampshire communities provide safety for every person.

Mission

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence creates safe and
just communities through advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected
by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

Note: The language below will be used in grant applications and other documents to
provide further clarification of what the Coalition does.
The statement above is the actual Mission Statement.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes,13 independent
community-based member programs, a Board of Directors and a central staff working
together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  . Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their

responses to sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

Approved April 2011

r

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence • PD Box 353 • Concord, NH 03302 • 603.224.8893

•V

mBUiSY/fnTTO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Opinion

Wc have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,2023, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In onr opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, (he financial position of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of
America.

Basis for Opinion

Wc conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditiug Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for iJie Audit of the Financial Slaieiucnts section of our report. We are required to be independent of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. Wc believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for tlie preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of iniental control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misslatemeni, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial siaiemenis, management is required to evaluate whetiicr iliere are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, lliat raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence's ability to continue as.a going concern within one year after the date that tlic financial statements are
available to be issued.

Auditor^s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to oblairi rcasonabifc assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole arc free from
material misslatemeni, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and tliereforc is not a guaranlce that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material missiatcmem when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misslatemeni resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or ilic override of inlemal control. Misstalemenis are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
oil the financial statements.

-1-
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In pcrfonning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governmeni Auditing Standards,
we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and mainiain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatcmcnt of the financial sialemciUs, whctlicr due to fraud or
error, and design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures iu the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc
appropriate in tlie circiunstanccs, but not for tlie piupose of expressing an opinion on ilie effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, no. such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of tlic financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
.  substantial doubt about New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's ability to

continue as a going concent for a reasonable period of time.

Wc arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, atnong otlicr matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significaitt audit findings, and cenain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audit.

Supplementary Information
t

. Our audit was conducted for llie purpose of forming an opinion on lite financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Frinciples, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards, is
presenied for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required pan of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the finaiKial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to tlie underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordaticc with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Ainerica. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to die financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 2023, on our
consideration of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
cfTcctivcness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. Tliat report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's 2022 financial
statements, and we expressed an umnodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
October 5, 2022. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has
been derived.

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 26, 2023

-2-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022

See Independent Auditors' Report

ASSETS

2023 2022

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash F^uivalents

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Certificates of Deposit, Short-Tcrm

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

$ 347,404

73,044

218,264

2,471,765

27,226

S 360,445

104,331

2,261,113

25,009

Total Current Assets 3,137,703 2,750,898

FROPER'n' AND EOUIPiVfENT

Equipment

Leasehold Lnprovcments

14,654

61,072

\

14,'654

61,072

Less Accumulated Depreciation

75;726

(42,061)

75.726

(33,551)

Total Property' and Equipment, Net 33,665 42,175

OTHER ASSETS

Long-Tcrm Investments

Certificates of Deposit, Long-Term

Operating Lease Right of Use Asset

Finance Lease Right of Use Asset

Security Deposit

432,178

204,166

456.259

8,068

6,213

392,595

171,136

6,213

Total Other Assets 1,106,884 569,944

Total Assets $ 4,278,252 S 3,363,017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses •

Operating Lease Liability, Current Portion
Finance Lease Liability, Current Portion

$ 2,058,023

94,245

106,546

3,776

S 1,730,517

91,641

. TotiU Current Liabilities 2,262,590 1,822,158

LONG-TERM LIABILmES

Operating Lease Liability, Less Current Portion

Finance Lease Liability, Less CuiTcnt Portion

349,713

4,292

■

Total Long-Tcrm Liabilities 354,005 -

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

1,588,613

73,044

1,436,528

104,331

Total Net Assets 1.661,657 1,540,859

Total Liabilities and Net Assets s ■ 4,278,252 S 3,363,017

Notes to Financial Statements

-3-



Docusign Envelope ID: 40C618DE-D21D-43BE-A2AA-7885407231D1

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic anil Sexual Violence

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2023, With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2022

Sec Independent Auditors' Report

Net Assets Net Assets

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2023 2022

CONTRIBUTIONS AND SUPPORT

Grant Revenue S  11.294.832 S  17.469 S  11,312,301 $  10.442,042

Contributions 189,821 - 189,821 165,473

Donated Services 29,648 - 29,648 4,692

Interest Income 4,880 - 4,880 3,722

Member Dues 12,000 - 12,000 12,000

Miscellaneous Income 144 - 144 678

Total Contributions and Support 11,531,325 17,469 11,548,794 10,628,607

Net Assets Released from Donor

Imposed Restrictions 48.756 (48,756) - -

EXPENSES

Program Seivices 11,334,314 - 11;334.314 10,321,468

Management and General 81,833 - 81,833 154,423

Fundraising 51,432 - 51,432 21,800

Total Expenses 11,467,579 - 11,467,579 10,497,691

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

OPERATING NET ASSETS 112,502 (31,287) 81,215 130,916

NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES)
-

Investment Dividends 7,339 - 7,339 14,093

.  Unrealized and Realized Gain (Loss) 34,222 - 34,222 (73,579)

Investment Fees (1.978) - (1,978) (2,286)

Net Nonopcrating Gains (Losses) 39,583 - 39,583 (61,772)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS 152,085 (31,287) 120,798 69,144

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,436,528 104,331 1.540,859 L471,7I5

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR S  1,588,613 S  73,044 S  1,661,657 S  1,540,859

Notes to Financial Statements

-4-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended June 30, 2023

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2022

See Independent Auditors' Report

Program Management Total Total •

Services & General Fundraising 2023 2022

Salaries S  1,198,898 $  51,431 S  35,444 S  1.285.773 S  1,264,694

Payroll taxes 89,868 3,855. 2,657 96,380 98,260

HcaltJi and Dental Insurance 145,609 6,241 4,185 156,035 128,038

Other Employee Benefits 31,174 1,299 - 32,473 37,156

Professional Services 78,647 3,277 - 81,924 77,710

Contract/Grant Ser\'ices 8,911,330 - - 8,911,330 8,091,952

Survivor Grants 90,225 - - 90,225 79,225

Rental Assistance 225,027 - 225,027 211,314

Memberships 7,064 294 -
7,358 6,533

Publications 1,973 82 - 2,055 1,925 ,

Advertising/Public Awareness 1,193 129. 1,906 3,228 1,756

Copying 4,014 167 - •  4,181 2,922

Office Supplies 33,692 . 1,566 3,897 39,155 41,855

Postage 2,655 125 352 3,1.32 3,500

Printing 2,142 141 1,234 3,517 1,493

File storage management 759 32 - 791 1,176

Maintenance & Repair 31,433 (.310 - 32,743 35,816

Rent Expense 98,891 4,120 - 103,011 99,611

Insurance 13,658 ■ 569 - 14,227 12,400

Staff Development 30,177 1,264 150 , 31,591 8,921

Tnivcl 31,692 1,321 16 33.029 10,128

Telephone 60,413 . 2,517 - 62,930 56,27i
Technology 145,069 ■ - 145,069 111,806

Miscellaneous Expense 25,450 1,127 1,591 28,168 14,971

AVAP Member Training/Education 8,368 - - 8,368 827

Direct Training 22,340 - - 22,340 32,3.69

Community Education 19,352 - - 19,352 39,915

Depreciation Expense 8,170 340 - 8,510 9,383

Accounting Fees 15,031 626 - 15,657 15,764

Total Expenses S  11^34314 $  81,833 $  51,432 S  11,467,579 $  10,497,691

Notes to Financial Statements

-5-
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New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Statements of Cash^FIows

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

See Independent Auditors' Report

2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Increase in Not Assets to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Net (Gain) Loss on Investments

(increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:

Grants Receivable

Prepaid Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:

Grants and Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

$  120,798

8,510

. (39.583)

(210,652)

(2,217)

327,506

2,604

206,966

$  69,144

9,383

61,772

(173,066)

(1,105)

38,447

19,239

23.814

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net (Purchase) Maturity of Certificates of Deposit

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(251,294)

(251,294)

122.983

122.983

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (44,328) 146.797

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, AT END OF YEAR

464,776 317,979

S 420,448 S 464,776

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Donated Services S  29,648 4,692

Notes to Financial Statements

-6-
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i>ew nampsnire coaiuion Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements

Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Natureof Activities

^  The Coalition is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt organization committed to ending domestic and sexual
violence. The Coalition serves as a coordinating organization for its 12-mcmber agency crisis centers that in
turn provide services to survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, human trafficking, and stalking. Eleven
of the Coalition's member agencies are autonomous, private, non-profit organizations with their own mission,
structure, and board of directors; one is a university-based program. The Coalition receives 98% of its funding
from federal and state agencies and less than 2% from private fundraising.

The Vision of the Coalition is:

All New Hampshire communities provide safely for every person.

The Mission of the Coalition is:

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence creates safe and just communities through
advocacy, prevention and empowerment of anyone affected by sexual violence, domestic violence and stalking.

This mission is accomplished by the Coalition, which includes 12 independent community-based member
programs, a board of directors and a central staff working together to:

•  Influence public policy on the local, state and national levels;
•  Ensure that quality services are provided to victims;
•  Promote the accountability of societal systems and communities for their responses to sexual violence,

domestic violence and stalking;
•  Prevent violence and abuse before they occur.

To elaborate on the above mission and vision statements, the Coalition supports member agency staff with
specialized training, resources and technical assistance; convenes member agency staff to facilitate shared
learning and peer support; and collects and disseminates best practices and current information. The Coalition
supports the development of new services and serves as a statewide clearinghouse and coordinating
organization related to victim ser\'ices. It administers state and federal contracts that provide funding for its
member programs.

Coalition staff provide education and training to court and law enforcement officials and attorneys, and
collaborate with legal assistance organizations that provide Iav.yers for survivors and their families. Coalition
staff work to promote cross-system collaboration with child protective services and child advocacy centers to
assure safety for children exposed to or who have experienced domestic and sexual violence, and for their
parents. Coalition staff participate on numerous statewide boards and commissions to advocate for effective
responses to victims.

The Coalition's Public Affairs staff work closely with other advocacy groups, legislators and survivors to draft
legislation, organize testimony, and advocate for policy changes throughout the legislative session. The
Coalition either takes an active role in or tracks close to 150 bills each legislative session. These bills address a
wide range of issues including domestic and sexual violence; stalking; family law; divorce and child
custody/visitation/support; reproductive rights; law enforcement and courts; privacy and personal information;
healthcare; and economic justice.

Coalition staff also provide resources and sources for responsible news media and reporting. Coalition staff
create and distribute statewide communications materials to raise awareness about sexual assault, domestic
violence, prevention and services available to victims.

-7-
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new tiampsnire coalition Against uomestic and sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years Ended June 30,2023 and 2022

NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

Nature of Activities (Continued)

The Coalition plays a key leadership role In efforts to prevent domestic and sexual violence throughout New
Hampshire. Coalition staff collaborate with state and local entities to support policies and practices to advance
effective prevention education. Coalition staff are proactive in educating the public about the causes and effects
of domestic and sexual violence and stalking and as well as services available across the state. The Coalition
has sponsored research on the prevalence of violence in New Hampshire.

The Coalition also manages several specific programs to assist its member crisis centers and the public. The
following are three distinct programs that directly affect sur\'ivors of domestic violence, sexual violence and
stalking:

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP)

The AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) founded in 1994 is a program of the Coalition that
ensures that direct scr\'iccs are available to victims of domestic and sexual violence and stalking throughout
New Hampshire. AVAP is part of AmeriCorps, a national service program that offers opportunities to
Americans who are interested in making a substantial commitment to serve their country through national
service.

Members of the AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program are placed throughout New Hampshire at member
agencies, police departments, prosecutor offices, the New Hampshire Department of Corrections, and child
advocacy centers to offer support and information to victims of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking. Currently, AVAP members are focusing their advocacy efforts on providing financial literacy and
housing services to survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, and stalking. AVAP members are trained in
the AliState Foundation's Moving Ahead through Financial Management curriculum which they use in onc-on-
one sessions and in financial literacy workshops focused on an array of topics from basic budgeting to cheeking
a credit report. AVAP members also provide information and facilitate referrals to local financial and housing
services.

Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) Program

A Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner (SANE) is a Registered Nurse who has been specially trained to provide
comprehensive care to sexual assault survivors, who demonstrates competency in conducting medical/forcnsic
examinations and who has the ability to be a witness in a sexual assault prosecution. Coalition staff are
responsible for training and working with registered SANEs and medical professionals across the state to ensure
that sexual assault victims receive consistent and professional care during forensic exams.

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program

Research shows a high correlation (40-60%) between the perpetration of domestic violence and the perpetration
of child abuse and neglect in the same family. The Family Violence Prevention Specialist Program was built on
tlie principle that abused and neglected children are best served when they can remain in a safe household with
a non-violent parent.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AlVD SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

The Family Violence Prevention Specialist program began in 1998 as a coordinated effort between the
Coalition and the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF). Family Violence Prevention Specialists
(FVPSs) are employed by local member agencies of the Coalition, and arc co-located at local DCYF District
Offices. The FVPSs are a source of assistance and training to child protective ser\Mce workers while providing
advocacy services to victims of domestic violence involved with DCYF. This program results in more effective
assistance to victims through the development of inter\'entions that recognize the adult victim's need for support
and advocacy in order to improve safety outcomes for children.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. The Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles for
not-for-profits. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the
Coalition, and the Coalition's conformity with such principles, are described below. These disclosures arc an
integral part of the Coalition's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Coalition reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets witli donor restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues generated by
receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and receiving interest from

. operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-related services raising contributions,
and performing administrative functions.

Net assets with donor restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets that are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either temporarily or permanently,
until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the
restriction is accomplished.

Basis of Accounting

*  ■

The financial statements of the Coalition have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities.

%

Grants Receivable and Promises to Give

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Coalition that is, in substance,
unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in whieh the contributions are recognized. All other
donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a restriction
expires, net assets with donor restrictions are rcclassificd to net assets without donor restrictions.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued^

Contributed Services

During the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the value of contributed services relating to professional
services were $29,648 and $4,692, respectively. All contributed services were considered widiout donor
restriction and were valued at fair-markel-valuc.

In addition, many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist the Coalition; these
amounts have not been recognized in the accompanying statement of activities because the criteria for
recognition as contributed services has not been met.

■ Estimntes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences
%

Employees of the Coalition arc entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of services, and
other factors. The statement of financial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but unpaid as of June 30,
2023 and 2022 in the amounts of $70,695 and $71,602, respectively.

Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the statements of activities and functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on their relationship to those
activities. Those expenses include payroll and payroll related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs
are allocated based on square footage. Payroll and payroll related expenses arc based on estimates of time and
effort. Other cost allocations arc based on the relationship bct\veen the expenditure and the activities benefited.

Property and Equipment

It is the Coalition's policy to capitalize property and equipment over $2,500 and all expenditures for repairs,
maintenance, renewals and betterments that prolong the useful lives of assets. Lesser amounts are expensed.
Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations of property and equipment are recorded as
contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations arc reported as contributions without donor restriction
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions
regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment arc reported
as restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be .
maintained, the Coalition reports expiration of donor restrictions when die donated or acquired assets are placed
in service as instructed by the donor. The Coalition reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets
without donor restrictions at that time. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method.
The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Improvements 39 Years
Equipment 3-7 Years

Depreciation expense recorded by the Coalition for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $8,510 and
$9,383, respectively.

-10-
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fconriniied)

Income taxes

The Coalition has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income tax under
Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Coalition is further classified as an organization that is
not a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant tax positions of the
Coalition are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its determination of whether any amounts are
subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Coalition follows the guidance of Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, related to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a.
threshold of more likely than not for recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.

Cash and Cash Eouivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Coalition considers all highly liquid investments (short-term
investments such as certificates of deposits and money market accounts) with an initial maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
reported within the statement of financial position to the sum of the corresponding amounts within the statement
of cash flows as of June 30;

2023 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents $347,404 $360,445
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 73.044 104.331
Total S420.44R S464.776

Certificates of Deposit

Certificates of deposit are reported on the accompanying statement of financial position. The certificates bear
•  interest ranging from 1.00% to 4.91% as of June 30, 2023. Maturities range from eight months to two and a

half years.

Segregation of Accounts

UndcrTitlc l,New Hampshire, The State and Its Govemment, Chapter 15 Lobbyist Section 15:l-a, the
Coalition is required to physically and financially separate state funds from any non-state ftmds that may be
used for the purposes of lobbying or attempting to influence legislation, participate in political activity, or
contribute funds to any entity engaged in these activities. The Coalition has established and maintains a separate
bank account for this purpose. The account balances were $31,013 and $23,455 at June 30,2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Coalition maintains cash balances in accounts at two local banks. These accounts are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At various times throughout the year, the Coalition may
have cash balances at the financial institution that exceeds the insured amount. Management does not believe
this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the Coalition. At June 30, 2023 and 2022 the
Coalition had uninsured cash balances of $336,578 and $134,613, respectively.

Advertising Costs

The Coalition follows the policy of charging the production costs of advertising to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense at June 30,2023 and 2022 was $3,228 and $ 1,756 respectively.
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NOTE A-NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, fcontinued)

Comnarative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net
asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such infonnation should be read in conjunction with the
Coalition's financial statements for the year ended June 30,2022, from which the summarized information was
derived.

Financial Instruments

Tlic carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposit, grants reeeivablc, prepaid expenses,
accounts payable and accrued expenses arc stated at carrying cost at June 30, 2023 and,2022, which
approximates fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. Other fmancial instruments
held at year-end are investments, which are stated at fair value.

Reclassificntions

Certain financial statement and note information from the prior year financial statements has been reclassified
to conform with current year presentation format.

Subsequent Event

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 26, 2023, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any arc of such significance to require disclosure.
It has been determined that no other subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this period.

Newly Adopted Accounting Pronouncement

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASC 842, Leases. Under the new guidance, a lessee will be required to
recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve months. Consistent with current
GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a
lessee primarily will depend on its classification as a finance or operating lease. However, unlike current
GAAP—which requires only capital leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position—the new
ASC will require both types of leases to be recognized on the statement of financial position. This standard was
adopted by the Coalition during the year ended June 30, 2023.

NOTE B - BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The Coalition has net assets designated for various future needs. These funds are comprised of the following as
of June 30:

2023 2022

Fund for Grace $ 59,932 $ 59,932
Operating Reserve - 148.665 148.665
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NOTE C - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of funds received by the Coalition, restricted as to use or time. The
restrictions are considered to expire when pa>TTients are made. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022 respectively, the
net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purpose:

2023 2022

Technology Improvement $ - 19,225
Human Trafficking Services 55,575 ■ 55,575
Economic Support to Survivors 17.469 29.531

Total. .t: 73.044 S 104 331

Net assets in the amount of $48,756 and $111,525 were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses
satisfying the restricted purpose during the years ended June 30,2023 ad 2022, respectively.

NOTE P - PENSION PLAN

The Coalition has a 403(b) savings plan for the benefit of its employees. The plan covers substantially all
employees after one year of service. During their budgeting process, the Board of Directors dctemiincs the
amount to be contributed annually. Employer contributions for the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022
totaled $28,343 and $27,848, respectively.

NOTE E - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Tn accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, the Coalition is required to
disclose certain information about its financial assets and liabilities. Fair values of assets measured on a

recurring basis at June 30 were as follows:

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets

For Identical Assets

2023 Fair Value (Level IV

Investments ,$ 432,178 $ 432,178
Certificates of Deposit 422.430 422.430

S 854.608 S 854.608

2022

Investments $ 392,595 $ 392,595
Certificates of Deposit 171.136 171.136

Fair values for investments were determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions.

NOTE F - LINE OF CREDIT

The Coalition has a one-year $150,000 revolving line of credit agreement with Merrimack County Savings
Bank. The credit line matures on May 20,2024 and automatically renews annually. Interest is stated at the
Wall Street Journal prime rate plus .5%, which resulted in interest rates of 8.75% and 5.25% as of June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively. The line of credit is secured by all business assets. There were no borrowings
against the line as of June 30,2023 and 2022.

•13.
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NOTE G - LIQUIDITY & AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Coalition has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities
and other obligations come due. The Coalition's primary source of support is grants. That support is held for
the purpose of supporting the Coalition's budget. TTie Coalition had the following financial assets that could be
readily made available within one year to fund expenses without limitations:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of deposit, short-term
Grants Receivable, net of.

Grants Payable
Less Amounts:

With Donor Imposed Restriction

2023

$ 420,448
218,264

413,742

f73.044)

^ 979410

2022

$ 464,776

530,596

nfl4.33n

S  ?^96 041

NOTE H - INVESTlVfENTS

Investments are presented in the financial statements at fair-market value. Investments at June 30, 2023 and
2022 are composed of the following:

2023 2022

Cost Market Cost Market

Equity Mutual Funds !g  52,185 $  68.789 S  52,185 S  58,471

Mutual Funds .138,440 124,569 135,292 123,730

Money Market 33,519 33,519 32,037 32,037

Exchange traded funds 170,824 205,301 170,824 178,357

Total JL 394,968 $ 432,178 S  390,338 . S  392,595

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 820-10 fair Value Measurements defines fair value, requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements, and establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurements based on the observable inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It prioritizes the inputs to the
valuation techniques used to measure fair value by giving the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurement) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement).

Under Topic 820-10, the three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities
that the Coalition has the ability to access at the measurement date.
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are cither directly or
indirectly observable for the assets or liabilities.
Level 3 inputs are iinobser\'able inputs for the assets or liabilities.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

All investments arc measured at Level 1. Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets in active markets.
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NOTE H - INVESTMENTS, fcontiniied)

The individual investments contain net assets without donor restrictions, investments in marketable equity
securities and marketable debt securities are carried at fair market value determined by "quoted market prices"
per unit (share) as of the statement of financial position date. All other investments are stated at cost. Donated
investments are recorded at the mean of the high and low price as of the date of receipt. Gains and losses on
investments are reported as increases or decreases in net assets without donor restrictions, unless their use is
restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law.

Spending Policv

Each fiscal year the Coalition is authorized to withdraw up to 5% of the total market value of the total portfolio
of the Fund. The amount available to be withdrawn in a fiscal year will be up to 5% of the Fund market value as
of the last business day of the fiscal third quarter of the preceding fiscal year. Only with the approval of a
majority vote of the Board of Directors, present at a meeting duly called for such purpose, may the Coalition
exceed the 5% spending cap.

Investment Return Objectives. Risk Parameters and Strategics

The Coalition Board of Directors is responsible for developing policies that govern investment of the assets of
the Coalition. The purpose of the following investment Policy, which is to be reviewed annually by the Finance
Committee of the Coalition are to:

Establish the investment objectives, policies, guidelines and eligible securities relating to investments
owned or controlled by the Coalition through a third-party investment advisor.

Identify the criteria against which the investment performance of the Coalition's investments will be
measured.

Communicate the objectives to the Board of Directors, investment managers and funding sources that may
have involvement.

Serve as a review document to guide the ongoing oversight of the management of the Coalition's
investments.

NOTE I - LEASING ACTIVTTIES

Operating Lease

,  The Coalition entered a ten-year lease agreement for office and parking spaces on March 1, 2018 which expires
February 28,2028. The lease agreement includes 4% annual escalations each year on the anniversary of the
lease term for office space. Rent for parking has remained fixed although it can be increased no more than 2%
each anniversary. Rent expense related to the lease was SI03,011 and $99,611 for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022 respectively.

As disclosed in Note A, the Coalition adopted FASB ASC 842 during June 30,2023 and as a result, it had no
impact to the prior year statement of financial position.

The Coalition has elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period comparable to the lease
terms as the discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily determinable. The risk-free rate option
has been applied to the office and parking assets.
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NOTE I - LEASING ACTIVITIES fContinued)

Total right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Lease Assets - Classification in Statement of Financial Position

Operating Lease Right of Use Asset S 456 259

Lease Liabilities-Classification in Statement of Financial Position:

Operating'Lease Liability, Current Portion 106,546
Operating Lease Liability, Current Portion 349.713

Total S 456.259

The weighted-average remaining lease term and weighted-average discount rate are as follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term in years: 4,67

Weighted-average discount rate: 5.315%

The future minimum lease payments on this agreement as of June 30 arc:

2024 , $ 106,546

2025 110,223
2026 1 14,047
2027 118,023

2028 80.496

Total payments 529,335
Net present value discount (73.076)

Present Value of lease liabilities S 456.259

Finance Lease

The Coalition leases office equipment under a finance lease agreement. The lease is for four-years, expiring
October 31, 2025. The annual rent expense is $3,776 per year and is included in office supplies on the'
statement of activities.

As disclosed in Note A, the Coalition adopted FASB ASC 842 during June 30, 2023 and as a result, it had no
impact to the prior year statement of financial position.

The Coalition has elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period comparable to the lease
tenns as the discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily determinablc. The risk-free rate option
has been applied to the office equipment.

Total right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Lease Assets - Classification in Statement of Financial Position

Finance Lease Right of Use Asset $ 8 068

Lease Liabilities - Classification in Statement of Financial Position:

Finance.Lease Liability, Current Portion 3,776
Finance Lease Liability, Current Portion 4.292

-16-



Docusign Envelope ID: 40C618DE-D21D-43BE-A2AA-78B5407231D1

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Financial Statements
Years EndcclJunc 30,2023 and 2022

NOTE I - LEASING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

The weighted-average remaining lease tenn and weighted-average discount rate are as follows:

Weighted-average remaining lease term in years: 2.33

Weighted-average discount rate: 5.315%

The future minimum lease payments on this agreement as of June 30 are:

2024 $ 3,776
2025 3,776

2026 1.259

Total payments 8,811
Net present value discount (7431

Present Value of lease liabilities S 8.068

NOTE J - RISKS AND UNCERTAINTtES - COVID-19

As a result of the spread of the COVI.D-19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen which may
negatively impact future financial performance. The potential impact of these uncertainties is unkno^^^^ and
cannot be estimated at the present time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition

Against Domestic and Sexual Violence
Concord, New Hampshire

Wc have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as
of June 30,2023, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and pcrfonnirig our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis
for designing audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatemenls, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit wc did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that wc consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified.
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As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence's financial statements are free from material misstaiement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliancc with
which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

pC/

Rowley & Associates, P.C.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 26,2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct
and material effect on each of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material cITect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance arc further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We arc required to be independent of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. Wc believe
that the audit evidence wc have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements oflaws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic.and Sexual Violence's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliancc with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on New Hampshire
-Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noneompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
mfluence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we;
•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and jjcrforming such other procedures as we considered

necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to lest and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestie and Sexual Violence's inlcmal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We arc required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in inlcmal control over
compliance that wc identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and cprrect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevcntedi or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in inlcmal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with,
governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal conU"ol over
compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that wc consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is c.xprcsscd.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rowley & Associates, P.O.
Concord, New Hampshire
October 26, 2023
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i>ew ttampsnire v^oaiiiion Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Schedule of Findings and Question Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the New Hampshire
Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence.

2. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Independent
Auditor's Report. No material weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of New Hampshire Coalition Against
Domestic and Sexual Violence, which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs arc reported in the

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Unifomi Guidance. No Material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for New Hampshire Coalition
Against Domestic and Sexual Violence expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) are reported in
this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as a major program were;

Victims of Crime Act - 16.575

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B Programs was: $750,000.

9. The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.

SECTION II - FINDINGS: FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

No matters were reported. ^

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS: FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

No matters were reported.
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New Ilnmpshirc'Cofllition Agninst Domestic »nd Sexual Violence

Schedule of Kxpenditurcs of rcdeml Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

redenil CFDA/ Pass-'lTirough

Program Title

Assistance

Listing
Number

Entity

Identifying
Number

Passed

'Hirough to

Subrecipicnts
Federal

Expeudilures

U.S. IXTianmeni ofHousina and Urban DcveloDment:

Pass-Through Programs from Slate of NH Department of HHS:

Continuum of Care Program 14.267 102-500731 226,8! 1 238,104

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 226.811 2.38,104

U.S. IXnartmcnt of Justice:

Direct Program - Violence Again.si Women Act of 2000
Pass-Tlirough Programs from State of NH Department of Justice:

VAWA. SASP

OVC Human TralTicking

16.556

16.017

16.320

2022SAS01 402,889

258,294 .

402.889

81,165

VOCA Gnuits:

VOCA, Data Projects Coordinator

VOCA, Competitive

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts

VOCA, PMC Subcontracts

16.575

16.575

16.575

16.575

2022Admin01

2022VOC72

2022VOC03

2022VOC31

28,621

2.747,034

.323,840 "

9.881

28,621

.3.224.327

323,840

Subtotal 3.099.495 3.586.669
VAWA, STOP 16.588 2022VAWI6 - 160,529

Total Pass-Through Programs 3,502.384 . 4.231.252

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 3.502.384 4,489.546

U.S. Deoanment of the Treasury

Pass-Through Programs from Slate of NH Department of Jiustice:
Coronavirus Stale and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds • Covid-iy 21.027 2023ARPVSI9 339.053 339,053

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY 339.053 339,053

U.S. Debartmcnt of Health and Human Services:

Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Scrv'ices Act
Direct Program - Family Violence Prevention Services Act • Covid-19

93.591

93.591

- 324,448

174.280

Subtotal 498.728

Pass-Through Programs from State of NH Department of HHS:
Sexual Violence Prevention - 93.136 102-500731 216.703 298.886

Family Violence Prevention Seivices Act

Family yiolence Prevention Seiviccs Act - Covid-19
93.671

•93.671

155510 BOOl

155510 BOOl

1,293.693

1,047.251

1,317,443

1.172.251

Subtotal 2.340.944 2,489,694

•  Total Pas.s-Through Programs 2,557.647 2.788.580

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & I-IUMAN SERVICES 2,557,647 3.287.308 .

Corooration for National & Communilv Services:

Pass-'llirough from Volunteer NH!

AmeriCorps Victim Assist Program

AmcriCorps Victim Assist Program - Covid-19.
94.006

94.006

- 113,911

77,199
TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL & COMMUNHT SERVICES

- 191,110

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS •S 6,625,895 $  8,545.121
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i>ew nampsnire coaiuion Against uomestic and Sexual Violence
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30,2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations ofNew Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence, it is not intended to and docs not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expcndilurcs arc
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, Cost Principles for Non-profit
Organizations, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

2. Pass-through entity identifying numbers arc presented where available.

NOTE C - SUBRECIPIENTS

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence provide federal awards to subrecipients
as follows:

Federal CFDA/

Program Title Assistance Listing # Amount Provided

Rapid Re-Housing Program 14.267 S 226,81 1

Sexual Assault Services Program 16.017 402,889

Victims of Crime Act 16.575 3,099,495

Coronavirus Fiscal Recovery 21.027 339,053

Sexual Violence Prevention 93.136 216,703

Family Violence Prevention Ser\'iees Act 93.67) 2.340.944

NOTE D - INDIRECT COST RATE

The New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence has not elected to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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TINA SMITH

CHAIRPERSON

HILARY HOLMES RHEAUME

VICE CHAIRPERSON & CO-CLERK.

JGHNGASAWAY

TREASURER

SHAilNA FOSTER

CO-CLERK

CAITLIN GARCIA

Certified Public Accountant

CARLOS JAUHOLA-STRAIGHT

Pastor, First Congregational Church of Pelham,

United Church of Christ

DEB HAYNES-KENNEY

Director of Response

SARAH GAGNON

Vice President of Clinical Operations, Riverbend
Community Mental Health Center

THERESA BRISSON

Certified Family Nurse Practitioner and Instructor
of Medicine at Geisel School of Medicine

TINA SMITH
DIRECTOR OF THE COALITION'S SURVIVORS' CAUCUS
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Rachel Duffy

Skills

Microsoft Oaicc- Power Point- Excel- Word- Community Outreach- Database Managcmcni-Lcadcrship-
Crisis Intervention^igh pressure environments- Housing Law/Family Law -Empathy -Team Player-
-Case Management -Grant Reporting - Federal Grant Applications- Grant Management- Confidential
Record Maintenance - Financial Education and Empowerment - National Service Leadership- Support
Group Facilitation-

Work Experience

Housing and Economic Justice Manager
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

August 202] to Present
Direct a HUD funded, Domestic Violence Rapid Rc-Housing grant through the NH Bureau of Housing
Supports. Facilitate trainings to subrccipicnt agencies. Offer technical assistance to programs ensuring HUD
compliance. Direct monthly housing and shelter meetings for advocates across the state to increase
collaboration and effective advocacy throughout the programs. Assist in completing annual grant
applications. Track grant expenditures and complete monthly billing. Manage a statewide VOCA funded
Housing First Program for the state's crisis centers. Process funding requests Perform annual grant
reporting and application. Develop and maintain statewide relationships to support housing advocacy.
Direct and administer the Economic Empowemient Program of NH, including managing the Matched
Savings Program and training AmeriCorps Members and other advocates on financial empowerment
resources. Sat on several housing committees including the Bureau of Housing Supports Executive
Committee as the Domestic Violence representative for the state. The Governor's Council on Housing
Stability, and the Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings. Support and advocate for housing policy
and legislation through providing testimony and support alongside the coalition's public affairs team.
Provide supcr\'ision to housing interns and fellows.

AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program Manager
NH Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence (NHCADSV)
August 2020 to August 2021
Effectively Managed NHCADSV AmeriCorps Victim Assistance Program (AVAP) by adhering to
mandated programmatic regulations including performing background checks on incoming AVAP
members, maintain member files, biannual grant progress reports, and cnsiu"ing members adhere to
ser\'ice polices. Offered mentorship, training, and guidance to AVAP members throughout the service
year. Supported host sites in supcr\'ising their AVAP members through training and ongoing
Communication across the scr\'ice year. Participated in AmeriCorps days of service events such as MLK
day of service. Trained AVAP members in implementing the Allstate Moving Ahead curriculum for
survivors of domestic and sexual violence at their host sites. Offered educational and employment
guidance for AVAP members exiting the program.

Transitional Housing Advocnte
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
February 2017 to August 2020
Manage the cases of up to 10 families. Assist clients in searching for apartments. Negotiate fair rents with
landlords. Keep informed on housing laws and legislation. Cultivate strong community relationships to
enhance client supports. Provide financial literacy to clients through ongoing budget and savings, and
credit awareness seminars. Maintain confidential information. Track statistical data and complete grant



Docusign Envelope ID; 40C618OE-D21D-43BE-A2AA-7885407231D1

reports on a semiannual basis. Work with clear judgment in crisis situations and provide emotional
counseling. Directly supervised the Housing First Advocate.

Shelter Manager
Bridges Domestic and Sexual Violence Support - Nashua, NH
January 2013 to Februarj'2017
Managed the cases of up to five families in a confidential domestic violence shelter. Provided direct
service and crisis counseling to all families. Maintained condition of shelter by keeping track of regular
maintenance and coordinating repairs. Lead weekly support groups at shelter. Participated biweekly on
the 24-hour crisis line. Maintained confidential documents. Tracked statistical data for quarterly reports.

AmeriCorps Member (court advocate)
Americorps Victim Assistance Program - Concord, NH
August 2012 to January 2013
Assisted sundvors of domestic violence in preparing legal documents such as restraining orders, and ex
parte custody orders. Advocated for clients during court proceedings. Assisted clients in applying for
legal assistance. Participated on biweekly on our 24-hour support line. Become familiar with All State
Financial Empowerment Curriculum and provide this training to clients. Attended AmeriCorps trainings
and social outreach events.

Education

Associates Degree in Behavioral Science-2019
Granite State College - Concord, NH
Certificate in Human Services-2014

Nashua Community College - Nashua, NH
UNH Supervisors Boot camp -University ofNew Hampshire Durham, NH (Completed 7/19/18)
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PAMELA ENGLISH

EMPLOYMENT

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence, Concord, NH

AdministmUve and Finance Director, 2006 - Present

•  Continued all duties of Business and Grants Manager, including all Financial Management of die
NHCADSV.

•  Lead, direct and conduct monitoring of all subrecipients to ensure compliance with federal and state law,
rules and regulations..

•  Administration management including maintaining insurance coverage for organization and employees
and administering employee benefits.

•  Management ofinformation technology systems.

•  Manage all business systems of the Coalition office.

Husiness and Grants Manager, 1995 - 2006
•  Maintain all financial records, including payroll and employee benefits. .

•  Manage state and federal funding programs and provide technical assistance to subcontractors.

•  Managed conversion to new computerized Fund Accounting system.

•  Hire and manage Bookkeeper and Office Coordinator.

•  - Act as Facilities Manager for building at 4 South State Su"eet. Concord.

Administrative Assistant, 1993 - 1995

•  Assisted two Co-Directors and a trainer with their administrative needs.

•  Responsible for coordination and management of office.

•  Maintain accurate financial records using full charge computerized bookkeeping system.

•  Insured compliance with all state and federal reporting requirements, including 941, state UC, W-2,
1099.

Self Employed Child care provider and Nanny, Concord, NH, 1988 -1993

Law OfTices, Concord, NH, 1985 - 1988
Legal Secretary

•  Daniel D. Crean, Esq. and Charles H. Morang, Esq., Municipal and Business Law Practices
•  Robert K. Mekeel, Esq. Labor, Criminal, Worker's Comp. and General Law Practice

COMPUTER EXPERIENCE AND SIOLLS

•  Fund Accounting Software \
Spreadsheets
Microsoft Office Word and Excel

Outlook and Outlook Express

•  Effective supervisory management
Excellent organizational skills; Attention to Detail Exemplary
Ability to manage multiple, simultaneous deadlines
Working knowledge of federal and state grant compliance requirements
Working knowledge of computer management
Computerized accounting management
Experience and knowledge ofNew Hampshire einployineiit law

EDUCATION
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NH Technical Institute, Concord, NH
Selected Accouuiing and Management Courses

Merritt Davis Business College, Eugene, OR
Legal Secretarial Degree II

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES

2002-2008 Norihwood Elementary School PTA, President for 2003/2005 school years
1990-2002 Dcwey/Klmball School PTA •
1983-1984 President, Merrimack Count>' Legal Secretaries Association
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Contractor Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Nevy Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence

Rapid Re-Housing Domestic Violence, Continum of Care Contract

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL '

SALARY

,1

Rachel Duffy Housing and Economic Justice Manager $8,600 $56,000.00

Pamela English • Administrative and Finance Director $0 $90,000.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00



0 JUN01^23 ah11:02 RCU

A. Wtavcr

UttrlB Coanltdoorr

Kitjt S. Foi
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271-9544 l-80M52-334SEit9S44

F«x:603t27]-4332 TDDAccm: 1-800-735-2^ www.dhhs.nb.gov

May 25. 2023

Hiis Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate Hou^
Concord, Nw Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the pepartment-of Health and Human Services. Drvisloh for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into.a Sole Source contract with New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual
Violence (VCOli^Sip) Concord, .NH in the amount of $1,050,912 for the provision of a housing
servloM Continuum of care project, with the option to. renew for up to four (4) additional years,
effective July, 1, 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2027. 100%
F^eral Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available.ln State Fiscal Years 2024 through 2027, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority,
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and en^mbfances bet^en slate fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and Justified.

05-85-424230io-79270bdb HEALTH AND SOCiAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
ayes, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal Year .
ICIass/Accpunti Class Title .Job Number

Total

Amount

.2024 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $262,728

2025 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $262,728

.2026 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD ,$262,728

2027 ,074-500585 Grarits for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $262,728

Total $1,050,912

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal'regulations require airprqcurement efforts
to be directed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) whl<^ requires
the Department to specjty the vendor's name during the annual, federal, Continuum of Care (CoC)
competitive application process fbr'up to a year prior to the grant award being iseued. As the
Coljabprative Applicant, the Department is required to Issue a Request for Proposals, through the
Continuum, based on the-HUp CdC Program" Notice of Funding Opportuni^;{NOFO). HUD
. reviews and scores vendor-applications based on federal rank and review pblicy. and scoring

itpols, created to match the federal NOFO. HUD subsequeritly awards Ending b^sed on strict
'federal criteria ̂ cifyir;g eligible activities, populations to be served, expected, performanoe
outcomes; arid time frames; for the application competition and subsequent^Departmentat
agreements. The Department receives notification of the awards and signed grarrt a9feen>eht8



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu .
and the Honorable Council

Peoe2of2

from HUD several months later at which time agreements, such as the one contained in this
request, can be executed.

A total of approximately 16 families, or. up-to 29 Individuals, at any given time annually,
will be served at any given.time annually.

Using the federally required Housing First model, (he Contractor will provide a housing
services cpritinuum of care project that includes the following categories:

" Rapid Re-Housino Domestic Violence (RRH DV) services that deliver rental assistance to

individuals, and, or. families who are experiencing homelessness to facilitate each participant's
transition to sustained pemianent housing. RRH includes the provision of pereonalized
supportive services and collaborative case management in support of housing stability and the
deveIopnf>ent of Independent living skills. Participants must be fleeing, or attempting to flee,
domestic violence, as defined by HUD. while experiencing homelessness. or. whHe at Imminent
risk of homelessness.

Additionally, the Contractor will work to maximize each participant's abil'rty to live more
Independently by providing connections to community and mainstream services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing-annual reporte provided by the
Contractor and conducting annual reviews related to compliance.with administrative rulei^and
: contractual agreements. <• .

As referenced In Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the attached
agreement, the parties have the option to exterrd the agreement for up four (4) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulrrerable individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in unsafe, situations without needed support. Addrtionally. the-
Department will be out of compliance with federal regulations, which could result in a Ic^s of.
federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and suppoiiive service programs.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #
NH00113D1T002204.

In the event that the Federal Funds becprne no longer available, ;General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. . = ■ -

•A Resp^ullysubmrtted.

Ly(/l^crvO-t-V^ fu-

Lori A: Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Tht Dtpartnum of HtoUh ami Human Stnjien'Mitsion u to)olh communiltn andfomilitt
in pnwding oppnrtunUia for lo aehietM health and independtnet.



OocuSign Envelope ID: 7l2443E6-A9A1-43dC*AEl2-EBlC60E835D6

Subject: Continuum of Care NHCADSV (SS-2024-DBH-10-CONTI-0I)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.'
1.1 Stale Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Corttracior Name

New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and
Sexual Violence

1.'4 Contractor Address

One Eagle Square
Suite 300

Concord, NH 03301- '

L5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-715-8799 •

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-

79270000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2027

. 1.8 Price Limitation

$1,050,912:.

1.9'Contracting Officer for State Agency . .

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number .y v

(603)271-9631 ' .

1.11 'Contractor Si^ature
OecuSlgnM by:

ScUM ^56/2023

1.12 Name and Title of Conira'cior Signatory
Lyn M. schollett " "i.

Executive. Director

1.13 State Agency Signature .
Dectfllgiwd by;

1  S. fffy °§'/30/2023-

1.14 Namc'and Title of State Agency Signatory • .i...,-,..
Katja S". Fox '

• Director ^ •

1.15 i^p/5^S)''lheN.H. Department of Administration, Division ofPersonncI f7/"a'/v'//ca6/ej ^

•. By: Director, On: s

1.16. Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (7/applicable)
Owwt^Bidby:

-  On:V30/2023 _ ^

1.17. ApprovdlT>y the Govemorand Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: ^ ^ G&C Meeting Date: ■

Page 1 of4 is
ConttTtclor Initials
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siafe of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency tdemified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor Identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, Identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHrSIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding'any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on-the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block l.l7i
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is sighed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective-Date"). ■

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the C-ontractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services," .performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding "any provision of this. Agreement to (he
contrary,' all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive'
action, that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or av&ilability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHTBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any.payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds.'' In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment untij such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to r^uce or
terminate the Services under, this Agrccmctil immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpaymcnt, and tcrrnsof payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C -
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State of the contract price shall be (he
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State rcscr\'cs the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA.80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding une.xpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORtUNITTY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, -the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation <ltity upon the
Contractor including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United Statesj the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all appticable intellectual .
property laws. . ~ •
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, (he Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and'will take affionative action to
prevent such discrimination.-
6!3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for •
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel'engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and.
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unl«s otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and

-shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom.it.i$.^engaged in a combined effort to,
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is-materially involved in thc^ procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4 is ■
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8. EVEtVr OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of ihc following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily' or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occuitence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the obsence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the .date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid'lo the Contractor;.
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
I^fault and set ofT against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by rcason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat' the Agreement as breached, terminate . the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or inequity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Dcfaulf, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Evenfof Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and

■all of the provisions hereof upon any further of other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

P-TERMINATIpN.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State Is exercising its option to terminate the'Agreement.
9.2' In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at Ihc State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fi fteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in-
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and includi.ng the date of termination. The form, subject matter',
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany Final Repon described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
fi les, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
fi nished or unfinished:
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchas^ with funds provided for that purpose .
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State; and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this A^eement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H.'RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
pcrformancc'of this Agrcemeni;thc Contractor is in all respects
an indeperideni contractor, and is neither an agent nor an

•  employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind'the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12; ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fi ffeen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purpos«

■  of this paragraph, a Change of'Control . shall-constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (0) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
whichj.jhird^jjarty, together with its afTtiiatcs, becomes the

■ direct or indirect owner of fi fty percent (50%) or. n>ore of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, of combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of ail or substantially all
of thc asscts of the Contractor.
12.2. None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all'subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party: _ ■

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees,-from and against any and all claims,

>  liabilities and costs for any personal Injury or propeny damages,
-patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which

• may be claimed.to arise out oQ ihc acts or omisworoipf the
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Coniracior. or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph l3.Noiwiih^anding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
terminatioh of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously rnaintain in force, and shall require- any'
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1. commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence Bnd'$2,000,0(X) aggregate
or excess: and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to'subparagraph 10.2 herein; in an amount not less than
80®/« of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by'the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
Issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatefs) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.

. Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9; or his or her successor, certificatcfs) of Insurance
for all rcncwal(s) of irisurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s)' of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference. •

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, cenifies '
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A rU{orkers'
Compensaiion")._
•15.2 To the extent'the Conlractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation In connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. TheConiraciorshaJI fumishthcComractingOfficcr
identified iti block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28.1-A and any" applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other'claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Conlractor,
wbich might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire'
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only aflcr approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agrecnicni is the wording
chosen by the panics to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any pany.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this.P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or aiiachmcnis and amendment thereof, the teims of the
P-37 (as,modified in EXHIBIT A) shall'control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS, The headings throughout the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no \wy be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agrecmctn. ̂  ." . ■ '

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc.incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of this
Agrccthcnl arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement wll remain in full.force and effect.

24; ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This*Agrccmcnt, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended
as follows;

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to
the approval of the Govemor and Executive Council of the State of New
Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder. shall become effective on July ,1, 2023 ("Effective Date").

-1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows: ,;>■

,  " 3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to four (4) additional years from
the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Govemor and Executive

•; Council.
1.3. . Paragraph 12,. Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts., is amended by adding

■ subparagraph 12.'3 as.follows: ' ■
12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditioris as the Contractor

and the Contractor is responsitDle to ensure subcontractor compliance with
those conditions. The Contractor shall have written, agreements with all .

'  subcontractors, specifying the work to .be performed; and if applicable, a
Business Associate Agreement in accordance with the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements shall specify -How
corrective action shall be rn'ariaged. The Contractor shall manage thev
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as
necessary. The Contractor shall artnually provide the State with a list of all
subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notiiy the State of any
inadequate subcontractor performance.

SS-202^-O8H.1<K:ONTH)t . A-1.2 ,* Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. Continuum of Care

1.1.1. Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)

1.1.1.1. The Contractor must provide a Rapid Re-Housing (RRH) program,
in this Agreement, as defined by HUD, that delivers supportive
services, including case management, and either short-term (1 to
3 months), or m^ium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance,
based on participants needs.

1.1.1.2. The Contractor must provide supportive services.for no longer than
six (6) months after rental assistance stops.

1.1.1.3. The Contractor must re-evaluate, at least annually, whether the
program participants lack sufficient resources and support
networks necessary to retain housing without CoC assistance and

y ' the types and amounts of assistance that the program participants
need to retain housing.

1.1.1.4. The Contractor must ensure that program participants meet with
their case manager at least once per month to assist the program

;  ' participant with obtaining and maintaining long-term housing
stability. The project is exempt from this requirement,lf..the Violence

;  AgalnstWomen Act of 1994 (42 U.S.C. 13925 efseg.) or the Farhily
Violence Prevention and Services Act (42 U.S.C. 10401 et seq.)
prohibits the recipient carrying out the project from making its
housing conditional on the participant's acceptance of services.

,'1 The Contractor must integrate program participants into the
community and promote housing stability.

J.1.1.5. The.Contractor must assist prograrfi participants with developing
7 ■ y or increasing their, skills and obtaining income, and/or employment.

1.1.1.6.. The Contractor must-provide or connect program participants with
supporti.ye services.

1.1.1.7. The Contractor must support and document appropriate efforts to
enhance the participant's ability to reach self-sufficiency.

1.1.2. Rapid Re-Housino Domestic Violence (RRH DV) Project

"  1..1.2.1. The Contractor must provide a RRR program as described in
'  Section 1.1.1.

1.1.2.2. The Contractor must" provide a Rapid Re-HousIng Permanent
-  Housing, Domestic Violence (RRH DV) program, In this

Agreement, that is targeted* to serve 16 families, or, up^to 29

lilials V •SS-2024^3eH-i0-CONTI-0i B*2.0 Contractor Iniliats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT B

individuals, at any given time annually. Participants must be
A  fleeing, or attempting to flee, domestic violence while e|Xperiencing

homelessness, or while at imminent risk of homelessness, as
defined by HUD.

1.1.2.3. The Contractor must provide either short-term (1 to 3 months), or
medium-term (4 to 24 months) rental assistance, based on
participants needs.

1.1.2.4. The Contractor must provide immediate assistance with identifying
safe and confidential housing options with the support of
Contractor's staff.

1.1-2.5. The Contractor must provide immediate referrals to assist with
safety and security concerns.

1.1.2.6. The Contractor must provide participants with access to training
and support groups that focus ori trauma, recovery from trauma;
and other supports..

.  1.1.2.7. The Contractor must assist participants in finding Ipng-term safe
" and penpanent housing.

1.1.2.8. . The Contractor must-provide supportive services, including at least
monthly case management, and ■ conriect partidpants with
supportive services to, help participants obtain and remain iri.
permanenfhousing.

1.2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

'1.2.1. The Contractor must adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the

approved HUD Project Application #SF-424.

1.2.2. The Contractor must erisure that participants riieet at least one, or more, of
the qualifications of homelessness, as defined-by HUD in 24 CFR 578.3.

1 ;2.3. . The Contractor must participate in the regional and CoC CE System.

1.2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days means business
days, excluding state and federal, holidays.

1.2.5. The Contractor must participate in meetings with the Department as requested
by the Departm_ent. . ' v

1.2.6., The Contractor must ensure staff participate in training as required, by the
*  Department. .

1.2.7. The Contractor must ensure the program includes, but is not limited to: h.

1.2.7.1. Utiliization of the Housing First model that ensures:

' 1.2.7.1.1. Barriers to entering housing are not imposed beyond
.  those required by federal-regtriations or state laws;

and
-OS
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EXHIBITS

1.2.7.1.2. Participation terminates only for the most severe
reasons, after available options to maintain housing
are exhausted, as detailed in HUD regulations, 24
CFR 578.91.

1.2.7.2. Development of an ongoing assessment of Housing and
Supportive Services that is provided to participants in order to
deliver assistance in obtaining riecessary skills and resources to
live in the community Independently.

1.2.5. The Contractor must ensure participants connect with supportive services and
community resources to meet basic needs including, but not limited to:
housing, safety, food, mental health and medical care. The Contractor must
ensure:

1.2.6.1. Participants increase safety through planning and trauma-informed-
resource provision;

1.2.8.2. Facilitation of the transition of individuals, youth, and families
experiencing homelessness to permanent housing and maximized
self-sufficiency;

1.2.8.3. Participants are empowered by Contractor's program to increiase
safety and regain control and independence;

1.2.8.4. Participants are offered connectioris to assistance in applying for
Compensation funds, help filing for restraining orders, court
advocacy and referrals to free legal services; and

1.2.8.5. Households v/ilh children will be connected to education resources,
school staff, and childcare services, based on need.

1.2.9. The Contractor must conduct an annual assessment of service needs of the
program participants and adjust the services accordingly.

1.2.10. The Contractor must ensure their staff assist with referrals for substance
misuse, mental health, medical heeds, peer support, or any other need for,
referral assistance identified by the participant. •

1.2.11. The Contractor must assess project outcomes, to include participants moving
into and retaining permanent tiousing, as well as participants' connections with
community and mainstream services, to increase independence and

. household income to sustain permanent housing.

1.2.12. The Contractor must actively participate, in reviews conducted by the
Department, onsite or remotely, as determined by the Department or HUD, on
an,annual basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department, that must
include, but are riot limited to, participant files and financial data to -ensure'
compliarice with contract objectives, state policies and federal regulations. The
Contractor must:

ss-2024^5BH-'i(K:ontwi B-2.0 • Coniractoffniu^
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EXHIBIT B

1.2.12.1. Ensure the Department and HUD have access to participant files;

1.2.12.2. Ensure financial data is available, as requested by the Department
and/or HUD; and

1.2.12.3. Provide other information that assists in determining contract
compliance, as requested by the Department arid/ or HUD.

1.2.13. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part
578.103(b), HUD, the HUD Office of the Inspector Genieral, and the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents,
papers, or other records of the Contractor that are pertinent to the (CoC) grant,
in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. These rights
of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as
the records are retained.

1.2.14. The Contractor must adhere to federal and state financial and confidentiality
laws, and comply with the approved HUD CoC program application, program
narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments thereto, as detailed

;  in the applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) CoC Project
Application approved by HUD.

1.2.15. The Coritractor must cooperate fully with, and must answer all questions
related to this Agreement from representatives of state or federal agencies

■ oih: who may conduct periodic observation and review of performance, activities,
and conduct an inspection of records and documents.

1.2.16. The Contractor must provide services according to the HUD regulations
outlined in Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578, the CoC Program, HUD
Project Application #SF-424 and other written appropriate HUD
policies/directives except for where HUD waivers are granted.

1.2.17. The Contractor must ensure participating individuals, youth, and families rheet
the requirement definition pf homelessness, or at imminent risk- of
homelessness qualifications, as defined io HUD regulations, to be eligible for
contract services, as applicable to the project.

1.2.18. Per The McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended-by S. 896,
This Homeless Emergency . Assistance and Rapid Transition to
Housing ' (HEARTH) Act oi : 2009,
httpsy/www.hud.qov^ites/documents/HAAA HEARTH.PDF:

1.2.18.1. The Contractor must utilize the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Infonpation System (NH HMIS) as the primary
reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter arid housing
programs funded through.this contract..

1.2.18.2. The Contractor must ensure all programs are licensed to-provide
client level data iritQ the NH HMIS or into a comparable database,

SS.2024^3BH.10^0NTI.01 B-2.0' . Contractor InlUols
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EXHIBIT 8

per 24 CFR 578, and as detailed in the following publication from
The National Network to End Domestic Violence (NNEDV);
http://qlhm.ora/wordpress1/wp-

content/uploads/2Q18/08/ComDarable-Database-fQr-DV- ■

NNEDV.pdf. . .

1.2.18.3. The Contractor must follow NH HMIS policy, including specific
information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and
time required for data entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information
Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy requirements.

1.2.19. The Contractor must comply with all record-keeping requirements as set forth
by HUD under 24 CFR 578.103.

1.2.20. The Contractor must establish and.maintain standard operating procedures to
ensure CoC program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578, 2 CFR
Part 500, and must.establish and maintain sufficient records to enable HUD
and the Department to determine Contractor.compliance, including but not
limited to: . .

1.2.20.1. Continuum of Care Records. The Contractor must maintain the
following documentation'related to establishing and operating a
CoC:

1.2.20.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor must

maintain acceptable evidence of homeless status in
accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b):

1.2.20.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessriess Status. The

Contractor must maintain records that establish "at .

. risk of homelessness" stkus of each individual or
family who receives CoC homelessness prevention
assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c); and

1.2.20.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of
■Harm. The Contractor must maintain documentation

•' . of each program participant who moved to a different
CoC due to imminent threat of further domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
as .defined in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor,
must retain documentation that includes, but is not

■  limited to:

.1.2.20.1.3.1. The original incidence of domestic
violence, dating violence, sexual
assault; or stalking, only if the original
violence is not already documented-in

.  the program participant's case file.
This may be written observation of the

LS
SS-2024^H-10CONT1.01 B-2.0 Contractor lnlUal$

5/26/2023
New Hampshire CoaDtlon AQsinst Domestic ond Sexual VIoionce Page 5 Of 12 Date



OocuSlgn Envelope 10:7l2443E&-A9AM3dC-AEl2-EBtC60E635D8

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT 8

housing or service provider; a letter or
other documentation from a victim

service provider, social worker, legal
assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or
other professional from whom the
victim has sought assistance; medical
or dental records; court records or law

enforcement records; or written
•  certification by the program participant

to whom the violence occurred or by
the head of household; and

1.2.20.i;3.2. The reasonable belief of imminent

threat of further domestic violence,
dating violence, or sexual assault or
stalking, which would include threats
from a third-party, such, as a friend or
family member of the perpetrator of the
violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service
provider: - a letter or other
documentation from a victim service
provider,. social worker, legal

T  assistance provider, pastoral
^  counselor, mental health provider, or

other professional from whom the
victirri has sought assistance; current,
restraining order; recent court order or
other court records; law enforcement
report or records; communication

records from the. perpetrator of the
violence or family members.or friends

.  of the perpetrator of the violence,
including emails, voicemails, text

.  messages, and social media posts; or
■  , a written certification by the program'

participant to whom the violence
occurred or the head of household..

1.2.20.2. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who
receives housing assistance where ferit of an occupancy charge is
paid by ttie program participant, the Contractor rriust keep the
following documentation of annual income:

SS-2024-OBH.1(M:ONTM)1 B-2.0
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1.2.20.2.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and
completed by the Contractor;

1.2.20.2.2. Source documents, which include but are not limited

to: .

1.2.20.2.2.1. Most recent wage statement;

1.2.20.2.2.2. Unemployment compensation
statement;

1.2.20.2.2.3. Public benefits statement, and bank

statements for the assets held by the
program participant; and

1.2.20.2.2.4. Income received before the date of the

evaluation.

1.2.20.2.3. To the extent that source documents are

unobtainable, a written statement by a relevant third
party, which may include an employer or a
government benefits administrator, or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the pral
verification by the relevant third party of the income
the program participant received over the most recent

;  period; or '

1.2.20.2.4. To.the extent that source documents and third-party
'  verification are unobtainable, the written certification

by the program.participant of the amount of income
that the program participant Is reasonably expected
to receive over the three (3) month period, following
the evaluation.

1.2.20.3. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of

.  r; homelessness status or at-risk-of-homelessness status, as ■

'  . applicable, the Contractor , must keep records for each program
participant that document:

1.2.20.3.1. The services and assistance" provided to- that
program participant, including, evidence that the-
Contractor conducted an annual assessment of

services for those program participants that remain in
the program for more than a year and adjusted the
service package accordingly, and including case .

;  T management services as provided in 24 CFR
578,37(a)(1)(ii){F);and'

*  1.2.20.3.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of •
assistance requirement in 24 CFR 578.91.

■  , ■ : ' , . ■ ' -• ti ■
SS-2024.08H.1(«ONT|.01 B-2.0 Contfsctof Inltlala

S/26/2023
N»wHamp9Ni«CoaSt)on Against Domestic and S«xualV(olenee ' Page 7 of 12 • Oato



OocuSIgn Envelope 10: 712443E6-A9A1-43SC-AE12-E81C60E835O8

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBITS

1.2.20.4. HousinQ Standards. The Conlraclbr must retain documentation of

compliance with the housing standards in 24 'CFR 578.75(b).
including inspection reports.

1.2.20.5. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of
supportive services provided under the Contractor's program and
the amounts spent on those services. The Contractor must keep
■documentation that the records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was
adjusted as necessary.

1.2.21. The Contracformust maintain records that document compliance with:
1.2:21.1. The organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR

,578.95(c);

1.2.21.2. The CoC board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR
578.95(b); and '

T.2.21.3. The other conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(d).

1.2.22. the Contractor must develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal
conflict-of-interest policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR
578.95, including records supporting any exceptions to the personal conflict-
of-interest prohibitions.

1.2.23. The Contractor must comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

1.2.23.1. The horiieless participation requirements iri accordance with 24
CFR 578.75(g); . • ••• r *' '

. 1.2.23.2. The faith-based activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR
.  578.87(b); J '

1.2.23.3. Requirements of 24 CFR 578.93(c).for affirmatively furthering fair
housing by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and other
materials used to inform eligible persons of the program;

1.2.23.4. Other federal requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

-  1.2.23.5. Other records specified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other
records as specified by HUD; and :. .

1.2.23.6. Procurement requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

■1:2.24. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security
requirements for HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor must develop and
implement written procedures to ensure:

1.2.24.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any
participant who applies for and/or receives CoC assistance are

.kept secure and confidential; . " V,

(i
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1.2.24.2. The address or location of any family violence project, assisted with
CoC funds, are not made public, except with written authorization
of the person responsible for the operation of the project; and

1.2.24.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant is
not made public, except as provided under a preexisting privacy
policy of the recipient or sub recipient and consistent with state and
local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2. Contract Administration

2.1. The Contractor must have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the Department's Bureau of Homeless Services (BHS), including training
in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws. To the extent
possible, BHS must notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

2.2. The Contractor must inform the Department of any staffing changes within thirty (30)
days of the change.

3. Reporting Requirements

"3.1. . The Contractor must submit an Annual. Performance Report (APR) to the
Department within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date on the form
required, or specified, by the Departrnent. . .. .

The Contractor must ensure the APR is submitted to;

:  NH DHHS .

■  Bureau of Homeless Services

129 Pleasant Street .
Concord, NH 03301 ■ '

3.3. The Contractor must ensure the APR includes a summary of aggregate results of
the project activities, consistent "with the format proposed in the Contractor's
application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year COC Notice of Funding
Opportunity (NOFO).

3.4.. The Contractor must submit other reports as requested by the Department In
compliance with NH HMIS policy and/or Department policies and procedures.

3.5. The Contractor may be required to collect and share data with the Department, in a
format specified by the Department, for the provision of other key data and metrics,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

4.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
'  with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information (Privacy

Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached Exhibit I.
Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.
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4.2. The Contracior must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

4.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Additional Terms

5.1. Impacts Resulting,froni Court Orders or Legislative Changes

5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith. , '

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services (CLAS)

5.2.1. The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access and
language assistance services to be provided to ensure meaningful access
to programs and/or sen/ices to individuals with limited English proficiency;
individuals who are deaf or have hearing loss; individuals who are blind or
have low'vision; and individuals who have speech challenges.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

V-. 5.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the'
services of this Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract
with -the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or required, e.g., the
United States Department of Health and Human Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under this Agreement must have
prior approval from the Departmerit before printing, production,.
distribution or use.

5.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to:

5.3.3.1. Brochures;

5.3.3.2. Resource directories;

5.3.3.3. •  Protocols or guidelines;

5:3.3.4. Posters: and

5.3.3.5. Reports

ts
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5.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under this
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

5.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

5.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor must
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which must impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any govemmentai license or penriit must be requirkJ for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection with the foregoing requirements, the Contractor. hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities
must comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
must be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations. , .

5.5. Eligibility determinations

5.5.-1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals,
youth, and/ or families such eligibility verifications must be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws,' regulations, orders,

.  guidelines, policies and procedures.

5.5.2. Eligibility determinations must be made on forms provided, or required by
th^ Department for that purpose and must be made and remade, or
reissued at such times as are prescribed by the Department. '

5.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor must maintain a data file on each participant of services
hereunder, virhich file must include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other information as the Department-

-  requests. The Contractor must furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department
may request or require.

5.5.4; The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services must be permitted to fill out an
application form and.that each applicant or reTapplicant must be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with applicable regulations.

6. Records •

6.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to: ^
o« .
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6.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitionis for

... materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,

payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

6.1.3. _ Statistical, enrollment, attendance of visit records for each recipient of
services, which records must include all re.cords of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such
recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all invoices
submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

6.2. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor must ensure all records, originals or
copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to
CoC.funds are retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date
and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, unless records are otherwise required
to be maintained for a period in excess of the five (5) year period according to state

■ or federal law orregulalion.

6.3. .. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any
of their designated representatives, must have access to all reports and fecprds
maintained pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts

■  , and transcripts. .

6.4. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report, the Department must disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the.Department retains the
right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or
to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100% Federal funds, Title XIV Housing Programs under the Homeless Emergency
Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing .Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-
Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550), as awarded on March 28, 2023, by the
US Dept of Housing and Urban Development. Continuum of Care Program.
Assistance Listing# 14.267, FAIN NH0113D1T002204.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Contractor must submit an invoice writh supporting documentation to the Department
no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of. the month following the month in which
the services were provided. The Contractor rpust ensure each invoice:

3.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

^  . 3 2 - Is submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the

Department.

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous month.

"  3.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice that may
Include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,, receipts ifor purchases,
and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to Initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature. Includes supporting documentation, arid is
.  emailed to hdusinqsupportsinvoices@dhhs.nh.aov or mailed to:

NHDHHS ;
.  Bureau of Homeless Services

-  129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 " '

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within forty-five (45) days of
receipt of . each Invoice and supporting documentation for-authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

5. The final Invoice and supporting documentation for authorized.expenses shall be due to
the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract completion date specified
in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7, Completion Date.

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. chariges limited to
.. adjusting amounts within-the price limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State

Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written
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agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Govemor and Executive
Council, if needed and justified.

7. Audits

7.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.QOV if any of the
following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000, or more, in federal
funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, during the
most recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Hl-b;

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to. submit an ,
annual financial audit.

7.1.4. ^ Condition D The contractor expends less than $750,000 in federal
funds, during the fiscal year, is exempt from Federal Monitoring
Requirements, except as noted in 2 CFR 200.503. but records must be
available for review, or audit, by. appropriate officials of the Federal
agency, pass through entity, ..and Government Accountability Office^,.*-
(GAO). Federal awards expended as a recipient or a subrecipient are
subject to audit under this part.-The payments received for goods or
services provided as a contractor are not Federal awards. Section § ^

'  200.331 sets forth the considerations in deterrnining whether payments ^
constitute a Federal award or a payment for goods or services provided
as a contractor. *

7.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor must submit an annual Single Audit performed
by an independent Certified Public .Accountant (CPA) to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov
within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in
accordance with the.requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F.of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit.Requirements for Federal
awards.

7.2.1. The Contractor must subrhit a copy of any Single Audit findings and any
"  associated corrective action plans. The Contractor must submit

quarterly progress reports on the status of implementation of the
corrective action plan.

7.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Contractor must submit an annual financial
audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after the close: of the
Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor .that the Contractor shall be held liable
for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department all'

y—M
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payments made under the Contract to which exception has been taken, or which
'  .have been disallowed because of such an exception.

7.5. If the Contractor is not subject to the audit requirements of 2 CFR part 200| the
Contractor shall submit one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the
Department, utilizing the guidelines set forth by the Comptroller General of the
United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions," within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal

•  year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards 90 days after contract completion date.

8. Proiect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

8.1. Project Costs: As used in this.Agreement, the term "Project Costs" nieans all
• expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for
payment, in accordance with Public Law .102-550, as well as allowable cost
standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to time and with the
rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. All subcontractors shall
meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

8.2. ' Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR
'  ■ 578 when used to establish and operate projects under five program corriponents:

•: permanent housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in
some cases, homeless prevention or an identified program component under'the

,  applicable Notice of Funding Opportunity, such as the Joint Transitional Housing,
. and. Permanent Housing^Rapid . Rehousing component project . Administrative

costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject.to the restfictions
■  ■ on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24 CFR

578.87(c). ;

8.3. Match Funds:

8'3.1. ■ The Contractor, shall provide sufftcienl matching funds, as required by
HUD regulations and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.2. Match funds shall be documented with each payment request.

^  8.3.3. The Contractor shall match all grant funds except for leasing funds, v/ith
no less than twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions
from other sources. . ..

8.3.4. The Contractor may choose to utilize Cash Match, or In-Kind Match, for
the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

8.3.4.1,. The Contractor must substantiate the cash , match in a
•  conimitrnent letter, and then must be tracked through the

Contractor's financial statements, general ledgers, arid
other records that reflect yearly financial statps-te show that

-  ('S . V -
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the cash was spent on eligible program expenses within the
grant term,

8.3.5. The cash match written commitment must be documented on the

committing agency's letterhead and must be signed and dated by an
. authorized representative of the agency providing the cash match. The
documentation, at a minimum, must include the following:

8.3.5.1. Amount of cash to be provided for the project.

,8.3.5.2. Specific date the cash will be available to the project.

8.3.5.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the cash match will be
„  . contributed.

8.3.5.4. Allowable activities to be funded by the cash match.
Documentation of expended match must include:

8.3.5:4.1. Agreement for cash match.

8.3.5.4.2. Cash match tracking which is done according
V  to general accounting principles in the

general ledger.

,  8.3.5.4.3. . Source documentation that cash match is
•  spent on eligible . activities under . CoC

Program interim rule.

8.3.6. The Contractor rnust maintain records , of the source and use of

contributions made to satisfy the match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73.

8.3.7. if the Contractor utilizes In-Kind Match, the Contractor must ensure the

following requirements are met:

8.3.7.1. The inrkind property, equipment, or goods must be
substantiated in a commitment letter and must be tracked

by the subrecipient agency to demonstrate that these items
were delivered to the project, and/or, to its participants,

'■ * ^ during the grant tenri.

8.3.7:2. ■ Written commitments for in-kind property,-equipment, or
goods must be documented ori the committing agency's
letterhead and must be sighed and dated by an authorized
representative of the agency providing the in-kind match.
The documentation, at a minimum, must include the

**• . following:

8.3.7.2.1. Description and value of the donated
.  property. equipment, or goods;

8.3.7.2.2. Specific date the property, equipment, or
goods will be made available to the project;

SS-2024-D8H-10^0NTI-01' " C-2.0 Conlrador Iniliab
5/26/2023"

NtwHAmpsNreCoftUtlonAoalnsiDomftsiicand.SexusiVteMnce •Pag«4oM5 Data



OocuSign Envelope 10: 712443E6-A9A1-438C-AE12-EB1C60E835D8

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT C

8.3.7.2.3. Grant and fiscal year to which the property.
equipment, or goods will be contributed; and

8:3.7.2.4. Method used to determine the value of the
property, equipment, or goods

8.3.8. In-Kind Services must be substantiated in a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU). and then must be tracked by the recipient or
subrecipienl to show that the services were delivered to program
participants during the grant term. Any services or benefits committed to
a program participant rather than the recipient or subrecipienl through
an MOU are generally ineligible to be counted as match.

8.3.8.1. Written commitments of in-kind services, during the
application, must be initially documented on the committing
agency's letterhead. The document must be signed and
dated by an authorized representative of the agency

=  providing the in-kind services. •

8.3.8.2. An MOU must be in place between the
recipient/subrecipient and service provider by the time of

s V grant execution and must include detail of the in-kind
.  services, their value, and the calculation method to be used

in determining their value. Any services provided prior to the*
execution of the MOU cannot be counted towards match.

8.3.9. Each MOU must:

:'v

.8.3.9.1. Establish the unconditional commitment to provide the.
services, provided that the project is selected for funding by
the CoO and HUD. :

^  8.3.9.2.. Specify the services to be provided to the project.
8.3.9.3. List the profession of the person who wiil provide the

services.

8.3.9.4. ■ Include the hourly cost of the services.

8.3.9.5. List the grant and fiscal year to which the in-kind match will
. be contributed.

8.3.9.6. Detail the system to be used to document the actual quaritity
and value of the services provided to program participants
during the grant term.

8.3.10. During the grant term, the actual in-kind services provided to participants
ririust be documented. The documentation must include the following:
8.3.10.1. Quantity of services provided.

8.3.10.2. Value of the services.,

8.3.10.3. Date(s) on which the services were providqd^-Ds

LS
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8.3.11. Subrecipients must request information from third-party service
providers ori in-kind service match activity at least annually and are
responsible for verifying that the match is eligible and related to program
participants served in the operating year.

8.4. Paymentof Project Costs:

8.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for
actual, eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement,
and shall be in accordance with the approved line items as specified in

:  the applicable Exhibit C, Budget, and as defined by HUD under the
provisions of Public Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations, subject
to the availability of sufficient funds.

,8.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimburse for those costs designated as
eligible and allowable costs as stated in these Payment Terms. The
Contractor must have written approval from the State prior to billing for

-  any other expenses.

8.5. . Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

8.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of
the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial
Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor
and all payments made to date.

.  8.5.2.' Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items of expenses "that are
y :. >: not determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of dctual

expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such disallowance.

8.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it
■  shall refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the.Contractor

pursuant to this.Agreement are subject to recapture. .

8.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees
thaTfunding under this, Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in-
the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or
regulation applicable to the services' provided, or if the said services,
products, required report submissions, as detailed in this agreement, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements, have not been satisfactorily completed
in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreerrient.

9. .Expense Elioibilitv

9.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall
utilize Continuum of .Care Program funds, as specified in these Payment Terrns.
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

9.2. Operating Expenses:

SS-2024-P8H-10-CONTI.01 C-2.0 . Coniractor Irtliab
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9.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

9.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing.

9.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car).

9.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major
systems of the housing (provided that the payments must be
based on the useful life - of the system and expected
replacement cost).

9.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50)
percent of the units or area is paid for with grant funds-. '

9.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water.

9.2.1.6. Fumiture and equipment. • ' .

9.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

:  9.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs'in the same project.

9.2.2.2., Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-
only facilities. ..

■  . 9.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of .
-  ■ maintaining and repairing the housing are Included in the

■ - lease. . • /

•  9.2.2.4. . Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible below is not
if an eligible cost of .providing supportive services using

•i - Gontinuurh of Care program funds. Staff training and costs of
obtaining .professional licensure or certifications-needed to
provide supportive, services are not eligible costs.

9.3. Supportive Services

y  9.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs shall comply with all HUD regulations in
24 CFR 57^53, and are available to individuals actively participating in
the permanent housing program. .v ' . *

9.3.2. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for
program participants who, are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons

;  living with HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence,
'  '* sexual assault, or stalking.

9.3.3. Eligible costs shall include:

9.3.3.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of the
'  assessment.required by 578.53(a) (2).

9.3.3.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving
■  costs are eligible and include truck rental and hiring a moving

"*■ company.
-OS

. ts
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9.3.3.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging,
coordinating, and monitoring the delivery of individualized
services to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are
eligible costs.

9.3.3.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care,
and providing child-care vouchers, for children from families
experiencing homelessness, including providing meals and
snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible.

9.3.3.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and
basic educational skills are eligible.

9.3.3.6. Employment assistance^ and job training. The costs of
establishing and operating employment assistance and job
"training programs' are eligible, including classroom, online
and/pr computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring
learning skills, and/or increasing eaming potential. The cost of

.  providing reasonable stipends to program partcipants in
employment assistance and job training programs is also an
eligible cost.

9.3.3.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program
*■ .• * participants Is eligible. ■;

9.3.3.8.^,„ Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting
■" ■ ' eligible. program, participants to locate, obtain, and retain

•  . suitable housing are eligible. .

9.3.3.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed
"  attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed

attomeys, for advice and representation in matters that
interfere with homeless individual or family's ability to obtain

,  .. •' ... and retain housing.

9.3.3.10. .Life Skills. training. The costs of teaching critical life
■  management skills that may never have been learned or have

been lost during'course of physical or mental illness, domestic
•  violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.

I. These services, must be necessary to assist the program
•i - participant to function independently in the community.

Component'life skills training are the budgeting of resources
and money management, household managernent, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items,
nutrition, the use of public transportation, and parent training.

9.3.3.11 .• Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient
treatment of mental health conditions that are provided by
licensed professionals. Component servio^^are crisis

'J
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Interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or
explanations at>out the use and management of medications;
and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address
, multiple problems.

9.3.3.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct
■ outpatient treatment of medical conditions when provided by
licensed medical professionals.

9.3.3.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons
for the purpose of providing immediate support and
intervention' as well as identifying potential program
participants, are eligible.

9.3.3.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program
participant intake and assessment, outpatient treatment, group
and Individuar counseling, and drug testing are eligible.
Inpatient detoxification and other inpatienl drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible. ■

9.3.3.15. Transportation Services, as described in 24CFR 578(e) (15).

9.3.3.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for
^  utility deposits. Utility deposits must be one-time, paid directly

to utility companies.

9.3.3.17. Direct provision of services. If a service, described as.eligible
in these Payrhent Terms, is being directly delivered by the,
recipient or subrecipient, eligible costs for those services also
include the following:

9.3.3.17.1. The costs of labor or supplies, and materials
incurred by the recipient or subrecipient.in directly
providing supportive services to program
participants.

■  9.3.3.17.2. The salary and benefit packages of the recifjient
,  ' arid subrecipient staff who directly.-deliver the

services.

9.3.4. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for Individuals, youth, arid
families experiencing homelessness. ; ■

9.3.5. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is
already receiving rental assistance, or living In a housing unit receiving
rental assistance or operating assistance through other federal, State, or

•  local sources.

9.3.6. Rental assistance shall be administered in accordance with the policies
and procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and may be: p"

SS-2024-08H-10-CONTI-01 C-2.0 ConlradOf IrtUate ;
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9.3.6.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

9.3.6.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

9.3.6.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

9.3.7. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed
2 months of rent.

9.3.8. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the
landlord, in addition to the security deposit and payment of first month's
rent. vj

9.3.9. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable,
as determined by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for
comparable unassisted units, taking into account the location, size, type,
quality, amenities, facilities, and management and maintenance of each

•  unit.

9.3.10. The Contractor may use grarit funds in an amount not to exceed one"
m'onth;s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant. For Leasing funds only: Property damages may be
paid only from funds paid to the landlord frorfi security deposits.

9.3.11. Housing shall be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,

;  . and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
/ located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the

-  - housing or services. '

9.3.12. The Contractor shall-provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based. Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

•  . 9.3.12.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which
program participants.(^oose housing of an appropriate size in
which to reside. When necessary to facilitate the coordination

• of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients" may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their
entire..p.eriod of participation, or in a specific structure for the
first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their period
of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component
must.be tenant based rental assistance.

9.3.12.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts
between the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor
may be a private, nonprofit organization, or a community

■  mental health agency, established as a public ■ nonprofit.
organization. Program participants must reside, in housing
owned or leased by the sponsor.

SS-2024-DBH.10-CONTI-01 C-2.0 -j . Contfactof Ihlllals^^-^
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9.3.12.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract
with the owner of an existing structure, where the owner
agrees to lease the subsidized units to program participants.
Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

9.3.12.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental
assistance, program participants must enter into a lease
agreement for a term of at least one year, which is terminable
for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long,
except on prior notice by either party. , ■

9.4. Administrative Costs: ' *

9.4.1. Eligible administrative costs include:',

9.4.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for
the payment of project administrative costs related to the •
plarining and execution of Continuum of Care activities. This
does not include staff and overhead costs directly related to
carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through
578.57, because those costs are eligible as part of tho^

-  activities. - , .,v

.> ■. * 9.4.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of
overall program management, coordination, monitoring and

V  * evaluation. These costs include, but are not limited to,
necessary expenditures for the following:
9.4.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs^6f the

Contractor's staff, or other staff engaged in.
program administration.

9.4.1.2.2. In charging costs to this category, the Contractor
'V..- may include the entire salary, wages, and related

costs allocable to the program of each person
'  * ^ whose primary responsilDilities.with regard to the

program involve program administration
assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,

:  wages, and related costs of each person whose'-
job includes any program administration
assignments. The Contractor may only use one of
these methods for each fiscal year grant. Program
administration assignments include the following:
9.4.1.2:2.1. Preparing program budgets and

,  , schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules.

(5-
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9.4.1.2.2.2. Developing systems for assuring
compliance with program
requirements.

9.4.1.2.2.3. Developing interagency
agreements and agreements with
subrecipient and Contractors to
carry out program activities.

9.4.1.2.2.4. Monitoring prograni activities for
progress and compliance with

program requirements.

9.4.1.2.2.5. Preparing reports and other
documents related to the program
for submission to HUD."

9.4.1.2.2.6. Coordinating the solution of audit
and monitoring findings.

.9.4.1.2.2.7. Preparing reports and other
documents directly related to the

. program submission to HUD.

.9.4.1.2.2.8.. Evaluating program results against
stated objectives.

9.4.1.2.2.9. Managing or supervising persons
,. whose primary responsibilities are

arhong those program
'  administration assignments, as

listed immediately above.

9.4.1.2.2.10. Travel costs incurred for official

business in carrying- out the
program.

9.4.1-2.2.11. Administrative services performed
under third ■ party contracts or
agreements. including . such

'  ' services as general legal services;
accounting services, ahd audit
services.

9.4.1.2.2.12. Other costs for goods and services
required for administration of the
program,, including such goods and

.  services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities,
office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of
office space.

ks
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9.4.1.2.2.13! Training on Continuum of Care
requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care
requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care
trainings.

9.4.1.2,2.14. Environmental review. Costs of

carrying out the environmental
review responsibilities under 24

.  CFR 578.31.

9.5. Leasing:

9.5.1. When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant
funds may.be used to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a

■  structure or structures, of portions thereof, to provide housing or
supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3),years. Leasing
funds may not be used to lease, units or structures owned by the
contractor, their parent organization, any other related organization(s), or
organizations that are members of a partnership, where the partnership

i-: owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an exception for good cause.

9.5.2. Requirements:

9.5.2.1. . Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or
part of a structure or structures, the rent paid must be
reasonable,in relation to, rents being charged in the area for

.  •. ■ ' comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not'exceed
rents currently being charged by the same owner for

• • comparable unassisted space.

9.5.2.2. Leasing individual units. When the grant funds are used to pay
rent for individual housing units, the rent paid must reasonable
in relation to rents being charged for comparable units, taking
into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may
not exceed rents currently being charged for comparable units,
and the rent paid may not.exceed HUD-determined fair market
rents.

9.5.2.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent,
these utilities may be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not
provided by the landlord, these utility costs are operating costs,
except for supportive service facilities. If the structure is being
used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are

,  * a supportive service cost.

9.5.2.4. Security deposits and first and last rnonth's rent. The
Contractor may use grant funds to pay security^'fwsits, in an

SS-2024-D8H.l0<iONTi-01. C-2.0 ConlfBdor Inllials
v

IS:

N«w Coalidort A0ainst Domotic and S«xuai Vidonce Paoe 130(15



DocuSign Envelope 10; 712443E6-A9A1^3dC-AEl2-EB1C60E83SD8

New Hampshire Depaiimentof Health and Human Services'
Continuum of Care NHCADSV

EXHIBIT C

amount not to exceed 2 months of actual rent. An advance

payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord
in addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's
rent.

9.5:2.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy
agreements and subleases are required as specified in 24-
CFR 578.77(a).

9.5.2.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy
charges and rent from program participants must be calculated
as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

■' . 9.5.2.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from
program participants are program income and may be used as
provided under 24 CFR 578.97.

.  9.5.2.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

9.5.2.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be
'  ' , . reasonable In comparison to rents charged in the area for

.  similar housing units. Documentation of rent reasonableness
must be kept on file by the Contractor.

9.5.2.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-
delermined fair market rents.

■  9.5.2.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds
'  may not be given directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

9.5.2.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the
•  * landlord for security deposits.

■  9.5.2.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to
V  itself.

•  ■ 9.5.2.14. Housing must be in compliance with.all State and local housing
codes, licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint

?  Poisoning' Prevention Act,' and any other requirements of the'
jurisdiction in which the-housing .is located regarding the

'■ condition of the structure and operation of the housing or
.... services.

9.6. The Contractor may charge program participants rent arid utilities (heat, hot water).
However, the arhbunt charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified
in HUD regulations (24 CFR 578.77). .Other "services ' such as cable, air
conditioning; telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking. pool charges, etc. are
at the participant's option.

9.7, The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this' contract, or
■ courited as match, complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheels.

10. Contractor Financial Management System m

[ts,
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10.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures that ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds
and any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds
disbursed in direct operations of the Contractor.

10.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
2 CFR part 200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

SS-2024-DBH-1<KX3NTI-0l ^ C-2.0
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS .
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C: 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification, by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they.will maintain'a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a .
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors' using this form should
send itto: .

Commissioner " ' , . *
.  NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505 ,

,1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: - -
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensirig, possessbn or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that wlil be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. ■ Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
•  1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. ■ The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free vvorkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

'• 1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
•  ... occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in'the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a'condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will •
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in witing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5.. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

oa

Exhibit 0 - Certification regarding Drxjg Free Vendor Intliali
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination; consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
Implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2; 1.3, 1.4. 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name: New Hampshire coalition Against Domestic and se

5/26/2023

Date

•DeniSlgMd by:

h\
N

Au Ai.
amS'^W^'''^-^"'SchoMett

Title: Executive Director

CUO41S/1I071)

Exhit^t b - Certincation regarding Drug Free
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 y.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A 1',
•Child Support Enforcement Program undjer Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX ....
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigried. to
any person for influencing or attempting to influencean officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer'or employee of Congress, or an employee of a -Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or . •'*
m.odificatioh of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention

. sub-grantee or subcontractor).

. 2, If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for '•
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or.employee of Cor^gress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In connection with this ..
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub^rantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as .Standard Exhibit E-l.) .

3.' The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
- d(^ument for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub^rants. and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction . '
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Tttle 31.- U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Namei.-New Hampshi re coalition Against Domestic and S«

-DMuSlgntd by:

lA. /W.UlA.. 5/26/2023 •

D^ti ^ ■■ Nalftrtyfrfl:'-schonett
Executive Director

OS '*■

is
ExhlWl E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor Initiab^-' ■ ■ '.d".,
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
r . certification set out belov/.

I ,

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of.Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, fajlure.of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a cerlification or an explanation shall disqualify such person .from participation in
this transaction.

3-. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to eriter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. .The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns

'  ■ that its certification was erroneous when subitiltted or'has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. ' • •

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,' "suspended." "Ineligible," 'lower tier cpvered '
transaction," "participant," "person." "primary covered transa<aion." "principal." "proposal," and • _
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions arid ' ,'
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:4(5 CFRPart 76. Seethe
attached clelfriitipns.: .

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by subrnitting this proposal (contract) that, should" the
. proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
Iransactiori with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered trensaction, unless authorized by OHMS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the '
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, In all lower tier covered •
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
-  lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
•  from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may

■ " .decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

.9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of regofds
in order-to render in good faith the .certification required by, this clause.- The knowledge and^- '

IExhibit F-Cerlirication Regarding pebannent, Suspension ' Contfaclor InitiatsV' '^ ■
Other Responsibility Matters 5/26/2023

CUrttHHSniorij" ■ Page1of2 . ̂  Date ;—
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings. .

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended,-debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, OHMS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certiftes to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently deterred, suspended, proposed for deSarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by'any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract).be.en convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract'under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

•  11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)

,  of this certification: and - .
11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public

transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primal participant is unable to certify to any'of the statements Iti this
certification, su^ prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). '

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS * -
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
' defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and telief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier pai^cipant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
- prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).-

I  * . , • * .

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and -
Voluntary. Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without mteification in all Icwer tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

5/26/2023

Date

Contractor Name: New Hampshire coalition Against Domestic and
j

OocutignM by;

At,, Sc/tdUt#
aHt^k.^^iW!^-Schonett

Tide:
Executive Oirector

•M

CUX)HHS/t107l3
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: : '

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees.or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basts of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference,.the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets'Act. .Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discrimina.ting, either in empldyment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion.' nationa! origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; .

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program' or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal nnanclal '
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

-the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and iensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;.

• the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C.. SectionsHS8l. 1683, 1685-86)^ which prohibits
di^rimination o.n the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07);'which prohibits discrimination on. the
basis of age in programs or activities .receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include-
employment discrimination;

•28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Departmenl.of Justice Regulations -OJJDP Grant Programs): 28.C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
•and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R.- pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiHcation or violation of the certiftcation shall be grounds for •
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

•09

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State adminislmtive agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human.Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: . .

•r

I. By signing.and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above. . - .

Contractor Name: New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic anc

5/26/2023 .

Date

GDocuSlgiMd »y:
|VL Ai.

Nak'ty^rr-schollett
Title:

Executive Director

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Acl of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The.
law does not apply to children's sen/ices provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid.funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compGance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the"Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificatiofi;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrws to'make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

•  Contractor Name: New Hampshire coalition Against Domestic and

5/26/2023

Date

•OeevSkwd by:

Ai.-
\i i MiereenwrM'J-.. t. ii
Name: Tyn M. schollett

Title:
Executive Director

CU/OHHSfllOTO

ExhibH.H - Certification Regarding
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABIUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
'  comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104--191 and

with the'Standards 'for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach".shall have the sarhe meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
^  Code of. Federal Regulations.

b.. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title.45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,"

Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in45CFR Section 164.501. " .

e. "Data AoareQation' shalj have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
* "■ Section 164.501. ■ , >■

f. • "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning.as the term "health care operations"
iri 45 CFR Section 164.501. ' ? ■

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Econornic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle 0, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act "of

■  2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
-  104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually. Identifiable Health

Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and 'amendments thereto.

i. ' "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section •164.501(g). . ••• ■ '

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same rheaning as the term "protected health
*  . • information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receive

Business Associate from or on behalf of "Covered Entity.
eived-by

IS.
'mUV __3/2014 —. Ejihibill Contractor Iniiials

Health Insurance Portability M . ■
Business Associate Agreement 5/26/2023
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I. 'Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and-amendments thereto..

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that Is not .

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards'developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. .; -•

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenwise defined herein shall have the'meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITEGH

Act. ̂  . . . * •-

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a.' Business Associate shall not.use, disclose, mairitain or transmit Protected Health-
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Assoclate. including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit

-. PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered •

Entity. •

*c. ' To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, .prior to makirig any such-disclosure, (i).
reasonable assurances from the third party .that such PHI will be held confiderltially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained •
knowledge of such breach., r. s;

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a .
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying .

'  Covered Eritity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^andto seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Bustfii^
ExhlWi 1 Contractor lnltlals>

*' Heaith Insurance Portability Act
3/2014

Business Assodale AgreemenI 5/26/2023
Page 2 or 6 Date.
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies-.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Oblloatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have ari impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b.'"- The Business Associate shall irrimedlately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations.- The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the.protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re*identificatiop;

0. The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

'  0 .Whether the-protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been - ■

mitigated. . ' .

The Business Associate shall cornplete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c.. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and ■
■  Breach Notification Rule.

•d. Business Associate shall make available alt of its Internal policies arid procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from,- or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of detetmining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement" to agree; in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including .
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity ■
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiateagreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiviji^l|HI

3/2014 ExhlWl I Contraclor Initials^
Heahh Insurance Portability Act
Busirwss Associate Agreement S/26/2023
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37} of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wntten request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet (he
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

;  • .

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall rhake such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526,

'i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
• such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CiFR Section
164.528. . -■ 0

j. Within ten (10) business days' of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a .
request for'an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. •

k. . In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, pr accounting of PHI. .
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the

,  responsibility of responding to.forwarded requests'. However, if forwarding the
indiyidual's request to.Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business.Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify .
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or'received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI-.-If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the. PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business bS

3/2014 Exhibit i Conlfactor Inlilals^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Assoctate Agreement S/26/2023
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

<4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a.. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
-164.520* to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section'
164.506 or 45 .CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of .
PHI.. , ;

(5) Terrniriation for Cause ̂ • •

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered^ ■
Entity's Knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately"
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible] Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous *

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to

•  a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. ■ Amendrhent. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreemerit, from time to tirrie as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in.the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges "that it has no ownership rights
'  with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resotved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HipAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 • ExhiblH Conlfactof Inilials^
'Health Insurance PortabiWy Act
Business Associate Agreement , S/26/2023

Page 5 of 6 Dale
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Seoreaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable!

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreenient In section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of .the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services New Hampshire Coalition Against.Domestic and Sexual violenc

\ ptegStatebr

S. fs)* .

Contractor

1 (aia. Ai,
^ signature of Authorized Representative .• Sigriature^bTAuthorized .Representative
1

*

Katja S. Fox Lyn M. Schollett

Name of Authorized Representative
Di rector

Name of Authorized Representative

Executive Oirector ■=

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

5/30/2023 ■ . 5/26/2023

Date Date

3/2014 ExhiMl I
Hestth Insurance Portability Ad
Business Associate AgreemenI
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CERTinCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCQUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPUANCE

The Federal.Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is suliject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In acco/dance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sutjaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Hurhan Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any •
subaward or contract evrard subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency • •
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source * ' .
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action '
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (LIE! #) ' t
.10. Total compensation and names ofthe top five executives if:

10'.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available.^rough reporting to the SEC.

Prirne grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment.is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Prpyisioris agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transpare'ncy-'^tl^ublic Law 10&'2B2 and Public Law 110-252, ' ,
and 2 CFRPart 170 (Reiporling Sub^rd arid'^ecutive Compensation Information), and further agiw
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions

' .execute the following Certification: ''
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Senrices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Firianciai Accountabilily sndTr^sparencyAcL ,•

^  Contractor Name: New Hampshire coalition Against Domestic and

ti-vu Ai.
^tuJULUilurjlU^L^I I

5/26/2023

Date N^eTCyi"W'-''Schoi lett
Executive Director

EjdilWt J - CcrtiflcaUon Regarding the Federal Funding Contrortor bilUab.
Accountability And Transparency Ad (FFATA) CompBance 5/26/2023
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

MS96M910CAN4

1. The DEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
re«ive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or-
cooperative agreements? *

.. X NO YES .
If the answer to #2. above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following: ■

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports-filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C,78m(a); 78o((j)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
'1986? .. . * . .

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following: . .
I  * .

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or i
organization are as follows:

Name:..

Name:.,

Name:..

Amount:

Amount

Name:.I.

Name:._

Amount

Antount:..

Amount:

ClVOHH9ft 107^3

Exhibit J - C«rtiflc«tion Regarding the Federal Funding.
Accountability And Tranaparency Act (FIJATA) Compfianco

Page 2 of 2
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

f-'

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
i  unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access, or potential access to personally identifiable.
Information, w/hether physical or electronic. With, regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach' shall/have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2), of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident.
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected' Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

.. Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
.  the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health" and

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of swhich collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by

.  state or federal law or regulation. This information includes; but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial .
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social-Security .Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. •

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance wjth'the terms of this. Contract. -

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or irriplied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a.-
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of •
a system for the processirig or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,

•  firmware, 'or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or.
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

VS. Last Update KVOg/IS -• ExHbilK Conlrsctof InUials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 5/26/2023
Page 1 of fi Dole
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the'data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Networlt" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security numl>er. personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc.,'
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information iwhich is linked

' or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually.Identifiable.Health..
Information at 45 C.F.R. .Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United ■
States Department of Health and Human Services.

' 10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. . •

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of "Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart.C, and amendments
thereto. •

12." "Unsecured.Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable,, or" indecipherable to' unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by

• * " the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not"
use, disclose, niaintaln or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the. Privacy and Security Rule.

•  : - 2 The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

■ ■ (i
•VS.LaMupdalolO/OWtS ExhibHK ComiBclorlniiials^i^Z

DHHS Infonnalion
Security Reqiiremenls -5/26/2023
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is- required by taw, In. response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to

■v consent or object to the disclosure. •

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that" DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and at>ove those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions arid must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Conlract.

■  5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance .with the terms of this

'  .- Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End tJser Is transrnitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have '
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said

. " ■ application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or po.rtable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of trar^smittlng DHHS
data. - ■

. , 3. Encrypted Email. End User may. only employ, email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated, and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to .receive such information.

.4. Encrypted Web Site. "If End UseV is employing the Web to transmit Confidential '
Data, the secure socket layers-(SSL) must be used and the web site miist be -

"  ' secure.-SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. . .
5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file

hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google .Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data. • • -.r • -

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmlfConfidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

[J
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote. User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information >mII be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also knov^m as Secure FileTransfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an. SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of.
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle'(i.e. Confidential Data will tje deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmittirig Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropr.i^e disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND.DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data,for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever- form it may exist, .unless, othenwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract, To this end, the parties must:-

A. Retention,^.:. ' • -r

.1.' The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or-process data collected in
* connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical iocation requirement shall also apply in the implementatlon of

*' . ' - cloud comp.uting, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, arid includes backup
"• 'clate and Disaster-Recovery locations.

2. the Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are " in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The- Contractor agrees Confidential Data, stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest ariti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-sparh. anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6.. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
. Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

Infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and v/ill
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractorses a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster-
recovery operations. When no.longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and'media
sanitization. or otherwise, physically destroying the media (for example.

- degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1., Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U-. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime -of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to .the Department
upon request. The written' certification will include all details necessary to '
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly^
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenvise specified, within thirty (30) days of the tenmiriation of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of. Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the. termination of this
-  Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data

by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.'

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follow^:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper - security controls to protect Department
confidential information .collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery-
of contracted services. ■

•2. The Contractor will maintain policies, and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and -secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.): ■

DS
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contriacting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7.' The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systenis access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

.  obtaining and maintaining access to ariy Department system(s). Agreements v/itl be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business'Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. ,

9. The .Contractor v^ll work with the Department at its request to complete-a System
Managernent Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable .the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may'
occur over the life of- the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the .Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knov/ingly or unknovyingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Departrnent data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained frorri the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to

' prevent future breach and rninimize any damage or loss resulting-from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

■r"
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, corhpty with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but.not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a),- DHHS.,
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts-160 and 164) that.govern protections for iridividually identifiable health

■  information and as applicable under Stale law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the .confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access'to it. The safeguards must provide a level-and
scope of security that is not less than the level and-scope of security requirements ,
established by the State of New Hampshire,. Department of Informatiori Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https7/www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
•for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process.--The Contractor wiil notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of .any security brea.ch immediately, at the erriail addresses
provided in .Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
-security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Ham'pshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to'
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.. •

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users: .

a: comply with such safeguards, as referenced .in Section IV A. above,
,  implemented to protect Confidential, Information that is furnished by DHHS
. under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

,b. safeguard Ihisrinformation at all times."

"■ c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
,sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to

. receive such information.

-M
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as .well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally Identifiable Information, and In all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or svhen
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determifiied by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must-not be
shared with anyone. ■ End Users will keep their, credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly .through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until.such time the .Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract. ■ -

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Securi^ Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. .

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach'Notification
procedures and in accordance with-42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine If personalty identifiable information Is involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Iricidents; and

^  08

US
vs. Lb»I update 10/09/18 ExWbllK ConiracloflnJUals

DHHS Infomution
Security ReduirBmenls S/26/2023

PegeBoffl Date _■



OocuSign Envelope 10:7l2443E6-A9A1-43eC-AEl2-E6lC60E835Od

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and t)ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. . . '

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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